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corporate structure
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Mr. Yap was appointed to the Board of Directors (“the Board”) of APB Resources Berhad (“the Company”) on 30 
March 2004. He is the founder and Managing Director of Amalgamated Metal Corporati on (M) Sdn Bhd (“AMC”), 
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. His working career started in 1968 as a welder with Brown & Root 
/ McDermott  Ltd, one of the largest engineering, constructi on and maintenance company in the world. He left  
Brown & Root / McDermott  Ltd in 1974 and joined Industrial Boiler Allied Equipment Sdn Bhd, a manufacturer of 
process equipment and boilers, and held the positi on of Workshop Superintendent for fabricati on works. In 1979, he 
founded Peng Fah Engineering Sdn Bhd, a company involved with fabricati on, welding and provision of engineering 
services. Mr. Yap, equipped with his vast experience and technical experti se as a manufacturer of process equipment 
for oil and gas industry, proceeded to set up AMC in 1989. Mr. Yap is instrumental for the growth of AMC, providing 
strategic directi ons and leadership thus establishing AMC as one of the major manufacturer of process equipment. 
Mr. Yap is also a Director of several other private companies.

Mr. Yap is not a director of any other public company.

His brother, Mr. Yap Kau @ Yap Yeow Ho, is a Non-Independent Non-Executi ve Director of the Company.

Mr. Tan a Board member since 30 March 2004, oversee the Group’s corporate, strategic, fi nancial, investment and 
human resource matt ers and is the key personnel handling the corporate aff airs and investment relati on. He has over 
twenty years of corporate experience in banking, accounti ng and equity research. He received an Honours Degree 
in Bachelor of Technology in Industrial Engineering & Management and Master of Business Studies in Business 
Administrati on & Finance in New Zealand. He later obtained a Diploma in Banking from the New Zealand Bankers 
Insti tute and a Diploma in Management from the New Zealand Insti tute of Management.

Mr. Tan working career began in 1979 as a Development Engineer with New Zealand Aluminium Smelters Ltd, 
a wholly owned subsidiary company of Comalco Australia Ltd. He was later employed as a Research Analyst at 
Westpac Banking Corporati on, New Zealand in 1980. In 1982, he joined W R Grace (New Zealand) Ltd, a wholly 
owned subsidiary of W R Grace Inc of USA as a Financial Analyst before being promoted to Chief Accountant. Upon 
his return to Malaysia in 1985, Mr. Tan worked at UOB Bank Malaysia Berhad (then Lee Wah Bank Limited) in the 
Credit & Marketi ng division unti l 1988 when he left  to join Asia Commercial Finance (M) Berhad as Loans Supervision 
Manager. Mr. Tan joined Metroplex Berhad as Senior Corporate Investment and Planning Manager in 1990 and in 
1992, he moved from the corporate to equity sector when he joined GK Goh Research Pte Ltd as a Senior Investment 
Analyst where he undertook equity research assignments on banking, gaming and property sectors. In January 
1995, he was Deputy Head of Research at Credit Lyonnais Securiti es Research. He joined Deutsche Morgan Grenfell, 
Malaysia in September 1995 as Director of Research, managing its research team and was responsible for strategies, 
equity research on the banking and fi nance sectors and macro research on Malaysia. He was subsequently promoted 
to Chief Representati ve for Malaysia in 1997 and subsequently moved to Hwang-DBS Securiti es Berhad as the Senior 
Vice-President unti l 2001. Mr. Tan is also a Director of several other private companies.

Mr. Tan is not a director of any other public company.
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Yap Kow @ Yap Kim Fah
Aged 65, Malaysian

Chairman / Managing Director • Member of Remunerati on Committ ee

Tan Teng Khuan
Aged 54, Malaysian

Chief Operati ng Offi  cer / Executi ve Director •  Member of Remunerati on Committ ee
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Mr. Gan was appointed to the Board on 
24 August 2007. Mr. Gan is the Director 
of Operati ons (Industrial Testi ng) of 
Prescan Sdn Bhd, a wholly owned 
subsidiary of the Company, since 
1988. Mr. Gan received his Diploma in 
Complete Welding from Internati onal 
Correspondence School in 1985, 
Diploma in Welding Metallurgy from 
Metal Engineering Insti tute in 1988, 
Certi fi cate of Profi ciency Certi fi cati on 
Scheme for Welding Inspecti on 
Personnel in Ultrasonic Practi ti oner 
in 1989, Senior Welding Inspector in 
1987 and Radiographic Interpreter in 
1985. His other qualifi cati ons include 
American Society for Non-Destructi ve 
Testi ng ASNT Level III (Radiographic 
Testi ng, Ultrasonic Testi ng and 
Magneti c Parti cle Testi ng) and 
ASNT Level II (Radiographic Testi ng, 
Ultrasonic Testi ng, Magneti c Parti cle 
Testi ng and Penetrant Testi ng). Mr. 
Gan has att ended correspondence 
courses between 1985 and 1988 at 
the Metal Engineering Insti tute on 
the Fundamentals of Non-Destructi ve 
Testi ng (“NDT”), Welding Inspecti on 
and Quality Control, Arc Welding 
Metallurgical Technology, Principles 
of Failure Analysis and the Element 
of Metallurgy. He has also att ended 
a course on Ultrasonic Testi ng of 
Materials at the Singapore Insti tute 
of Standard and Industrial Research 
(“SISIR”) in 1981. Mr. Gan is a 
Member of American Society for Non-
Destructi ve Testi ng (“ASNT”) and a 
Member of Malaysian Society for Non-
Destructi ve Testi ng (“MSNT”).

Mr. Gan began his career in 1980 when 
he worked for Independent Testi ng Co. 
Sdn Bhd as NDT Technician. In 1981, 
he joined Jardine (M) Sdn Bhd as NDT 
Inspector. In March 1982, he joined 
Mitsui Ocean Development Engineering 
(M) Sdn Bhd as Radiographer 
Supervisor and in August 1982, he 
returned to Independent Testi ng Co 
Sdn Bhd as Ultrasonic Inspector. In 

1983, he moved to Mapel Sdn Bhd to 
work as Structural Integrity Inspector 
and in 1984, he was employed at Solus 
Oceaneering (M) Sdn Bhd as Welding 
and Structural Inspector and was 
seconded to Sarawak Shell Berhad. 
He was employed at Petrochemical 
Inspecti on (M) Sdn Bhd in 1987 as an 
off shore Hook-Up Inspector and was 
seconded to Sarawak Shell Berhad.

Mr. Gan’s current responsibiliti es 
as a Director of Prescan Sdn Bhd 
includes managing Prescan Sdn Bhd’s 
operati ons, conducti ng training 
courses, certi fi cati on of NDT 
personnel, preparing NDT procedures 
and interpretati on of radiographic 
fi lms.  He is an appointed NDT Level 
III examiner on U-Stamp Pressure 
Vessel Fabricati on Projects for various 
companies in the industry.

Mr. Gan is not a director of any other 
public company.

Mr. Lim was appointed to the Board 
on 26 November 2008. He received 
an Honours Degree in Bachelor of 
Commerce (Accounti ng) and Master 
of Commerce from University of New 
South Wales, Australia.

Mr. Lim was a bank offi  cer at United 
Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Berhad 
(then Lee Wah Bank Limited) from 
1984 to 1989. He then joined AmBank 
(M) Berhad (then Security Pacifi c 
Bank Limited) as an Assistant Vice 
President in 1989 and he left  in 1990 
to join Malpac Holdings Berhad as an 
Executi ve Director, a positi on he sti ll 
holds. Mr. Lim is also a Director of 
several other private companies.

Mr. Lim sits on the Board of Directors 
of Malpac Holdings Berhad as an 
Executi ve Director and Kumpulan 
Powernet Berhad as an Independent 
Non-Executi ve Director.

Mr. Yap was appointed to the Board 
on 30 March 2004. Mr. Yap started his 
career in the transportati on sector and 
served as an Operati on Manager with 
TTS Transport Sdn Bhd from 1977 to 
1984. Since 1984, Mr. Yap has been 
a Director of TTS Transport Sdn Bhd. 
Mr. Yap had been conferred the ti tles 
of Pingat Jasa Khidmat, Ahli Mahkota 
Pahang and Seti a Mahkota Pahang by 
Duli Yang Maha Mulia Sultan Pahang in 
year 1990, 1996 and 1999 respecti vely. 
Mr. Yap is also a Director of several 
other private companies.

Mr. Yap is not a director of any other 
public company.

His brother, Mr. Yap Kow @ Yap Kim 
Fah, is the Chairman and Managing 
Director of the Company.
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Gan Chin Boon 
Aged 51, Malaysian

Executi ve Director

Yap Kau @ Yap Yeow Ho 
Aged 67, Malaysian

Non-Independent Non-Executi ve Director

directors» profile (cont’d)

Lim Hong Liang 
Aged 51, Malaysian

Non-Independent Non-Executi ve Director



Mr. Chua was appointed to the 
Board on 30 January 2004. Mr. 
Chua graduated with a Bachelor of 
Mechanical Engineering (Honours) 
from University of Malaya. He 
served with the Malaysian Industrial 
Development Authority (“MIDA”) 
from 1971 to 2000. During his tenure 
with MIDA, Mr. Chua had held such 
senior positi ons as Director of MIDA’s 
Investment Centre in Tokyo, Director 
of Metal and Engineering Industries 
Division and Director of Tariff  Division. 
Mr. Chua had held the positi on of 
Deputy Director General of MIDA 
before reti rement.

Mr. Chua currently sits on the Board of 
Directors of Hirotako Holdings Berhad 
as an Independent Non-Executi ve 
Director. He is also a Director of several 
other private companies.

En. Johari Low was appointed to the 
Board on 30 March 2004. En. Johari 
Low is a Fellow Member of The Insti tute 
of Chartered Accountants of England 
and Wales (“ICAEW”) and is a member 
of the Malaysian Insti tute of Certi fi ed 
Public Accountants (“MICPA”), the 
Malaysian Insti tute of Accountants 
(“MIA”) and MENSA Internati onal. En. 
Johari Low was the Executi ve Director 
of Arab-Malaysian Banking Group 
from 1984 to 1987, Group Managing 
Director of Berjaya Group Berhad from 
1989 to 1992. Chief Executi ve Offi  cer 
of KFC (M) Holdings Berhad from 1993 
to 1994 and Deputy Chairman of Anglo 
Eastern Plantati ons Plc from 1994 unti l 
1998.

En. Johari Low currently manages 
his own consultancy practi ces and 
serves as Chairman of the Rockwills 
Internati onal Group. He sits as 
Independent Non-Executi ve Directors 
for Kumpulan Powernet Berhad and 
Malpac Holdings Berhad, and as a 
director for Amcorp Group Berhad.

Ms. Mak was appointed to the Board 
on 27 January 2004. Ms. Mak is an 
Australian Certi fi ed Public Accountant 
and a member of the Malaysian 
Insti tute of Certi fi ed Public Accountants 
(“MICPA”). She started her career 
with the Inland Revenue Department 
of Malaysia as a Tax Examiner from 
1977 to 1980 and then furthered her 
educati on in the University of Malaya 
where she graduated with an Honours 
Degree (Second Class Upper) Bachelor 
of Accounti ng in 1984. Thereaft er, 
Ms. Mak worked as a Tax / Audit 
Senior in a top three accounti ng fi rm 
in Kuala Lumpur from 1984 to 1987. 
She then joined a local bank as an 
offi  cer and subsequently worked as 
an Assistant Manager with the Loans 
Recovery Division of another fi nancial 
insti tuti on before pursuing her studies 
in Australia in 1991. From 1993 to 
1995, Ms. Mak was with JB Were & 
Sons, Australia as an Assistant to the 
Group Management Accountant. She 
joined Deutsche Securiti es, Kuala 
Lumpur in 1995 as an Investment 
Analyst for the banking, fi nance, 
insurance and stockbroking sectors 
unti l 1998. Thereaft er, she worked as 
a Group Accountant with a housing 
constructi on group before taking up 
employment with Danaharta Urus Sdn 
Bhd in 1999 where she was involved 
in loan rehabilitati on and recovery.  
Subsequently, she  researched for 
the investment department of SJ 
Asset Management Sdn Bhd for six 
years (2000-2006) before her current 

positi on as a fund manager in TA 
Investment Management Sdn Bhd, 
a local investment management 
company.

Ms. Mak is not a director of any other 
public company.

En. Muhayuddin was appointed to the 
Board on 10 December 2001. He has a 
Bachelor of Commerce from Carleton 
University, Ott awa, Canada. En. 
Muhayuddin started his career in 1985 
as a Financial Offi  cer with Lembaga 
Letrik Negara (“LLN”) and he has 
stayed with LLN unti l 1987. Thereaft er, 
En. Muhayuddin joined the banking 
industry and has held various positi ons 
in both local and foreign banks. In 
1993, he joined Federal Furniture 
Holdings (M) Berhad as Corporate 
Aff airs Manager and Managing Director 
of a subsidiary of Federal Furniture 
Holdings (M) Berhad. En. Muhayuddin 
is currently the Executi ve Director and 
Chief Executi ve Offi  cer of Computer 
Forms (Malaysia) Berhad since 1998.

En. Muhayuddin currently sits on the 
Board of Directors of Computer Forms 
(Malaysia) Berhad as an Executi ve 
Director and Malpac Holdings Berhad 
as an Independent Non-Executi ve 
Director.

Chua Eng Seng 
Aged 65, Malaysian

Independent Non-Executi ve Director
Chairman of Nominati on Committ ee
Member of Audit Committ ee
Member of Remunerati on Committ ee

Mak Fong Ching (Ms.)
Aged 54, Malaysian

Independent Non-Executi ve Director
Chairperson of Audit Committ ee
Member of Remunerati on Committ ee
Member of Nominati on Committ ee

Muhayuddin Bin Musa
Aged 48, Malaysian

Independent Non-Executi ve Director
Chairman of Remunerati on Committ ee
Member of Audit Committ ee
Member of Nominati on Committ ee

Johari Low Bin Abdullah 
@ Low Han Hing
Aged  60, Malaysian

Independent Non-Executi ve Director
Member of Audit Committ ee
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Mr. Yap was appointed to the Board 
on 26 November 2008. He holds 
a Victorian Certi fi cate Educati on, 
Australia. Mr. Yap joined Amalgamated 
Metal Corporati on (M) Sdn Bhd 
(“AMC”), a wholly owned subsidiary 
of APB Resources Berhad in 2000 
as an Esti mator and was promoted 
to Proposal Manager in 2003. Since 
October 2004, Mr. Yap is the Deputy 
General Manager of AMC.

Mr. Yap is not a director of any other 
public company.

His father, Mr. Yap Kow @ Yap Kim 
Fah, is the Chairman and Managing 
Director of the Company and his 
uncle, Mr. Yap Kau @ Yap Yeow Ho, 
is a Non-Independent Non-Executi ve 
Director of the Company.

Ms. Yap was appointed to the Board on 
26 November 2008. She is a registered 
insurance agent with General 
Insurance Associati on of Malaysia 
(“PIAM”). Ms. Yap has started her 
career in the transportati on industry. 
From 1988 to 1992, while she was 
employed by TTS Transport Sdn 
Bhd she has served as an Operati on 
Assistant, Administrati ve and Finance 
Assistant, and Personal Assistant to a 
director of TTS Transport Sdn Bhd. In 
1993, Ms. Yap joined Amalgamated 
Metal Corporati on (M) Sdn Bhd 
(“AMC”), a wholly owned subsidiary 
of APB Resources Berhad as the 
Administrati ve and Finance Manager.

Ms. Yap is not a director of any other 
public company.

Her father, Mr. Yap Kau @ Yap Yeow 
Ho, is a Non-Independent Non-
Executi ve Director of the Company 
and her uncle, Mr. Yap Kow @ Yap Kim 
Fah, is the Chairman and Managing 
Director of the Company.

Yap Swee Sang 
Aged 34, Malaysian

Alternate Director to Yap Kow
@ Yap Kim Fah

Yap Puhui Lin (Ms.)
Aged  42, Malaysian

Alternate Director to Yap Kau 
@ Yap Yeow Ho
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Notes:

• Family Relati onship with any Director and/or Substanti al Shareholder
 
 None of the Directors other than Mr. Yap Kow @ Yap Kim Fah and Mr. Yap Kau @ Yap Yeow Ho have any family 

relati onship with any other Director and/or substanti al shareholders of the Company.

• Confl ict of Interest with the Group
 
 The Group has entered into recurrent related party transacti ons with parti es in which the Directors of the 

Company, namely Mr. Yap Kow @ Yap Kim Fah and Mr. Yap Kau @ Yap Yeow Ho, have direct and/or indirect 
interests as disclosed in note 28 of the accompanying fi nancial statements. Save as disclosed above, none of the 
other Directors of the Company have any confl ict of interest with the Group.

• Convicti ons for Off ences (Within the Past Ten Years, Other Than Traffi  c Off ences)
 
 None of the Directors of the Company have been convicted of any off ences within the past ten (10) years other 

than traffi  c off ences, if any.

directors» profile (cont’d)



Dear  Valued  Shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I have the pleasure of presenting 
the annual report and financial statements of APB Resources Berhad and its 
subsidiary companies (“the Group”) for the financial year ended 30 September 
2010.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW 

The business environment for the 2010 fi nancial year was 
very diffi  cult. While the global fi nancial crisis had subsided 
and economic acti viti es are gradually stabilizing, the process 
equipment industry as a whole remained mired in a weak 
demand and over-capacity situati on. With the excepti on of the 
oleo-chemical sector, capital expenditure remained weak in the 
oil and gas, petrochemical and energy sectors. Demand from 
the oleo-chemical sector conti nued to be held up by buoyant 
crude palm oil prices and upstream acreage expansion boosted 
by rising consumpti on demand. The Group margins were further 
squeezed by weak global demand and excess fabricati on capacity. 
The weakening US dollar vis-à-vis the Ringgit during the year had also 
eroded profi tability signifi cantly.

Despite a trying operati ng environment, the Group remained profi table 
with an aft er taxati on profi t of RM4.9 million for fi nancial year ended 30 
September 2010. It recorded a profi t of RM23.4 million in the preceding year. This was mainly due to 21% decline 
in revenue, slight margin dip and exchange loss arising from the weakening US dollar. Notwithstanding the very 
competi ti ve business environment, the Group managed to hold up its profi t margin relati vely well through cost 
control measures, greater marketi ng and effi  ciency eff ort.

The Group derived 98% of its revenue and 85% of segment result from the fabricati on division for the fi nancial year 
ended 30 September 2010. Exports conti nued to account for approximately 90% of the revenue where the bulk 
went to Asia, Middle-East and North Africa. During the year, the oleo-chemical sector was the principal revenue 
driver given that capital expenditure had not picked up in the oil & gas and petrochemical sectors. As for the energy 
sector, the other mainstay for the process equipment industry, some positi ve signs are emerging towards the end 
of the fi nancial year.

The Non-Destructi ve Testi ng division performed slightly ahead of the fabricati on industry, maintaining its profi tability 
despite the tough business conditi on.

The Group’s fi nancial positi on remains healthy with a net cash positi on of RM43.3 million or net cash per share of 
38.0 sen as at 30 September 2010.
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PROSPECTS

The Group’s earnings will conti nue to be driven by global 
demand represented by capital expenditure for the oil 
& gas, petrochemical, energy and oleo-chemical sectors. 
The general consensus is that the global fi nancial crisis 
has been defused and while there are sti ll areas of 
volati lity and uncertainty, the economic situati on is 
gradually stabilizing. However, fabricati on acti viti es for 
these sectors are expected to lag the general pick up in 
economic acti viti es by a year or two.

The global fabricati on industry is driven by capital 
expenditure which is determined by demand for 
capacity expansion. Huge capacity expansion in the oil 
& gas and petrochemical sectors in the past year has 
created excesses parti cularly in the Middle-East. We 
anti cipate that it would take at least a couple more years 
for demand to use up the excess capacity before new 
capital expenditure picks up in this region. However, 
robust demand in these sectors would drive capacity 
expansion in South America, former Soviet bloc, China, 
India and Indonesia.

The energy sector is also a major user of process 
equipment. Some positi ve indicators are emerging on 
capital expenditure in the energy sector where numerous 
projects were shelved or deferred during the global 
fi nancial crisis. Highly populated and economically fast-
growing countries such as China, India, Brazil, Russia and 
Indonesia require massive additi ons to energy capacity for 
many years to come. Rising fuel costs and environmental 
factors are forcing uti lity companies in both emerging 
and developed countries to invest in renewable energy 
alternati ves and to replace old ineffi  cient power plants. 
All these augur well for the Group and would be a 
mainstay of the Group’s earnings going forward.

The Group has built a very strong track record and 
reputati on as a process equipment fabricator for the oleo-
chemical industry. Moreover, this sector has cushioned 
the Group during the down-turn faced by the fabricati on 
division over the past two years. In the coming years, 
the Group should benefi t from rising capital expenditure 

brought about by the rapid expansion of palm oil acreage 
in Malaysia and Indonesia and demand for oleo-chemical 
end-products parti cularly in the Asian region.

The Group conti nues to be mindful of the prevailing 
uncertainti es and diffi  culti es in the operati ng environment 
and will conti nue to be vigilant and will take all the 
necessary measures to stay competi ti ve. Over the years 
the Group has built a good reputati on and established 
strong goodwill with its clients. This will provide a stable 
earnings base. Moreover, the strong cash positi on will 
enable the Group to seize upon potenti al opportuniti es 
but rest assured, the Group will always maintain a 
cauti ous and prudent strategy in all investments going 
forward.
 

DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended a fi nal single-ti er exempt 
dividend of 3.0% per ordinary share for the year ended 
30 September 2010. This upon approval by shareholders 
at the forthcoming Ninth (9th) Annual General Meeti ng, 
together with the interim single-ti er exempt dividend of 
3.5% paid earlier, will bring the total dividend to 6.5% for 
the year ended 30 September 2010 (6.5% for 2009).

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to express 
our appreciati on to all employees for their dedicati on 
and contributi on to the Group.

I would also like to extend my grati tude to our customers, 
business partners and the community, including our 
shareholders, for their conti nued support and confi dence 
in the Group.

Finally, to my fellow Board members, I extend my 
appreciati on and thanks for their conti nued support, 
guidance and contributi on.
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The Board of Directors of APB Resources Berhad (“the Board”) is committ ed to the principles of corporate governance 
and best practi ses as prescribed within the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (“the Code”). The Board is 
committ ed to ensure the principles of corporate governance and best practi ses as set out in the Code are practi ced 
throughout APB Resources Berhad (“the Company”) and its subsidiary companies (“the Group”) to protect and to 
enhance shareholders’ value and fi nancial performance.

The Board is pleased to report the Group’s state of corporate governance for the fi nancial year ended 30 September 
2010.

1. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1.1 The Board

The Group conti nues to be led and managed by an eff ecti ve Board which has the overall responsibiliti es 
for corporate governance, on strategic, corporate and operati onal issues, and on capital expenditures, 
investment and divestment matt ers. These responsibiliti es ensure that the governance of the Group is 
fi rmly with the Board.

The Board comprises a balanced mix of members from diverse professional backgrounds and 
specialisati ons, collecti vely bringing with them a wide range of experience and experti se in areas such as 
operati ons, technical, strategy, fi nance, corporate aff airs and risk management. The Executi ve Directors 
are responsible for implementi ng the policies and decisions of the Board, to oversee operati ons 
and to coordinate the development and implementati on of business and corporate strategies. The 
Independent Non-Executi ve Directors bring objecti vity and independent judgments to the decision 
making of the Board and to provide a review and challenge on the performance of management. As 
such, the Board is consti tuted of individuals who have proper understanding and competence to deal 
with the current and emerging business issues.

Brief descripti ons on the background of each Director are presented on pages 4 to 7 of this Annual 
Report.
 
For the fi nancial year ended 30 September 2010, the Board has held fi ve (5) meeti ngs. Details of Board 
meeti ng att endances during the fi nancial year are as follows:

Name of Directors Designati on Number 
  of Meeti ngs 
  Att ended

Yap Kow @ Yap Kim Fah Chairman and Managing Director 5 / 5

Tan Teng Khuan Chief Operati ng Offi  cer and Executi ve Director 5 / 5

Gan Chin Boon Executi ve Director 5 / 5

Lim Hong Liang Non- Independent Non-Executi ve Director 5 / 5

Yap Kau @ Yap Yeow Ho Non-Independent Non-Executi ve Director 5 / 5

Mak Fong Ching (Ms.) Independent Non-Executi ve Director 4 / 5

Chua Eng Seng Independent Non-Executi ve Director 4 / 5

Johari Low bin Abdullah  Independent Non-Executi ve Director 5 / 5
@ Low Han Hing 

Muhayuddin bin Musa Independent Non-Executi ve Director 4 / 5
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1. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (conti nued)

1.2 Board Balance

The Board is well balanced with Executi ve and Non-Executi ve Directors to meet the Group’s requirements. 
As at the date of this statement, the Board has nine (9) members comprising of three (3) Executi ve 
Directors, two (2) Non-Independent Non-Executi ve Directors and four (4) Independent Non-Executi ve 
Directors. The majority of Directors are considered by the Board to be independent which complies and 
exceeds the directors’ independence requirements as set out under paragraph 15.02 of Bursa Malaysia 
Securiti es Berhad’s (“BMSB”) Listi ng Requirements which requires that at least two (2) directors or one-
third (1/3) of the board of the company, whichever is the higher, are independent directors.

The concept of independence adopted by the Board is in line with the defi niti on of an independent 
director as per BMSB’s Listi ng Requirements. The key elements for fulfi lling the criteria are the 
appointment of directors who are not members of management i.e. non-executi ve directors and who 
are free of any relati onship which could interfere with the exercise of independent judgment or the 
ability to act in the best interests of the company.

The roles of the Chairman and Managing Director are combined as he possesses the inti mate knowledge 
and experience in the core business acti viti es of the Group. Notwithstanding this, the functi onality 
of the Board is not compromised as the fi ve (5) Non-Executi ve Directors on the Board are respected 
professionals in their own rights who have demonstrated their conti nued professionalism in the 
discharge of their duti es.

The Board is sati sfi ed that the current Board compositi on fairly refl ects the interests of the Company’s 
minority shareholders.

1.3 Supply of Informati on

The Directors are provided with suffi  cient and ti mely informati on to enable the Directors to discharge 
their duti es eff ecti vely. Meeti ngs of the Board are scheduled in advance and informati on are prepared 
and circulated in ti mely manner to enable the Directors to peruse, obtain additi onal informati on and 
seek further clarifi cati on on the matt ers to be deliberated.

The Board recognises that the decision making process is highly dependent on the quality of informati on 
furnished. As such, all Directors have full and unrestricted access to ti mely and accurate informati on. 
The Board papers encompass both quanti tati ve and qualitati ve factors so that informed decisions can 
be made. All proceedings from the Board meeti ngs are minuted.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, who ensures that the 
Directors receive appropriate and ti mely informati on for its decision making, that the Board procedures 
are followed and the statutory and regulatory requirements are met. The Company Secretary also assists 
the Chairman in ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meeti ngs. The 
Board believes that the current Company Secretary is capable of carrying out his duti es to ensure the 
eff ecti ve functi oning of the Board.

All Directors in discharging their respecti ve duti es have exercised balance and independent judgements 
when deliberati ng on matt ers of strategies, corporate, investments, operati ons and fi nancials.

1.4 Re-electi on of Directors

In accordance with the Company’s Arti cles of Associati on, at least one-third (1/3) of the Board members 
will reti re by rotati on at each Annual General Meeti ng (“AGM”) and all Board members will reti re from 
offi  ce at least once every three (3) years. Directors scheduled for reti rement shall be eligible for re-
electi on.

Re-electi on of Directors provides an opportunity for shareholders to renew their mandate conferred 
to the Directors.

 

statement on corporate governance (cont’d)



12 ANNUAL REPORT 2010       APB RESOURCES BERHAD 564838-V

1. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (conti nued)

1.5 Directors’ Training

All Board members have att ended and successfully completed the Mandatory Accreditati on Programme 
as prescribed by BMSB’s Listi ng Requirements. The Board recognises the need to att end programmes 
and seminars to keep abreast with developments of new laws, regulati ons or best practi ses, or to be 
updated with new development in the market place.

During the fi nancial year ended 30 September 2010, the Directors have att ended seminars on “Goods 
and Services Tax (“GST”) in Malaysia – A New Tax Regime”, “Views from the Boardroom – Challenges 
Directors Face”, “Corporate Governance Best Practi ces”, “How Sustainable Are Our Businesses”, “The 
Debt Recovery Process”, “Demysti fying Derivati ves and Structured Products” and “Understanding 
Psychology of Investor Behaviors for Capital Market Intermediaries”.

1.6 Sub-Committ ees

To ensure the most eff ecti ve and professional discharge of duti es, the Board maintains three (3) 
committ ees, namely Audit Committ ee, Nominati on Committ ee and Remunerati on Committ ee, whereby 
each committ ee will focus on specifi c areas and will operate within clearly defi ned terms of reference. 
The details of these committ ees are as set out below. These committ ees are empowered to examine 
specifi c issues under their respecti ve purview and to make recommendati ons to the Board. However, 
the ulti mate responsibiliti es and decisions on all matt ers deliberated by these committ ees sti ll rest with 
the Board.

(a) Audit Committ ee

The Audit Committ ee comprises four (4) Independent Non-Executi ve Directors. The Audit 
Committ ee members are as follows:

(i) Mak Fong Ching (Ms.) – Chairperson;
(ii) Chua Eng Seng;
(iii) Muhayuddin bin Musa; and
(iv) Johari Low bin Abdullah @ Low Han Hing.

The Audit Committ ee assists the Board to meet its fi duciary responsibiliti es relati ng to fi nancial 
management and controls, and provide greater emphasis to audit functi ons by reviewing the 
objecti vity and independence of external and internal auditors.

The Report of the Audit Committ ee for the fi nancial year ended 30 September 2010 is presented 
on pages 16 to 19 of this Annual Report.

(b) Nominati on Committ ee

The Nominati on Committ ee comprises three (3) members of the Board, all of whom are 
Independent Non-Executi ve Directors. The Nominati on Committ ee members are as follows:

(i) Chua Eng Seng – Chairman;
(ii) Mak Fong Ching; and
(iii) Muhayuddin bin Musa.

The Nominati on Committ ee has held one (1) meeti ng for the fi nancial year ended 30 September 
2010 whereby the Company Secretary shall be the secretary for the Nominati on Committ ee.

The Nominati on Committ ee is to assist the Board in assessing the contributi ons of each Director, 
assessing the eff ecti veness of the Board and Board Committ ees, and where necessary, to 
consider and recommend new directors to the Board and to Board Committ ees. The Nominati on 
Committ ee is also responsible to review the required mix of competencies and skills of Board 
members to serve the Group’s business and operati on needs.
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1. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (conti nued)

1.6 Sub-Committ ees (conti nued)

(c) Remunerati on Committ ee

The Remunerati on Committ ee comprises three (3) Independent Non-Executi ve Directors and 
two (2) Executi ve Directors. The Remunerati on Committ ee members are as follows:

(i) Muhayuddin bin Musa – Chairman;
(ii) Chua Eng Seng;
(iii) Mak Fong Ching;
(iv) Yap Kow @ Yap Kim Fah; and
(v) Tan Teng Khuan.

The Remunerati on Committ ee has held one (1) meeti ng for the fi nancial year ended 30 
September 2010 whereby the Company Secretary shall be the secretary for the Remunerati on 
Committ ee. The quorum for this meeti ng has been a majority of members who are Non-Executi ve 
Directors.

The Remunerati on Committ ee is to assist the Board in assessing the responsibility and 
contributi on of Board members and to ensure the remunerati on packages of Board members 
refl ect their responsibility and contributi on. The Remunerati on Committ ee is also responsible 
to recommend to the Board the remunerati on packages of Executi ve Directors to ensure that 
these remunerati on packages commensurate with the Executi ve Directors’ contributi ons to the 
Group’s growth and profi tability. This is necessary to align the Executi ve Directors’ interests with 
those of the shareholders.

However, the Board will have the responsibility to determine the Executi ve Directors’ remunerati on 
packages and the fees for Non-Executi ve Directors. The Board members are required to abstain 
from parti cipati ng in any deliberati on regarding their own remunerati on packages or fees.

2. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The aggregate remunerati on paid or payable, by nature and amount, to all Directors of the Company for the 
fi nancial year ended 30 September 2010 is as follow:

 Executi ve Directors Non-Executi ve Directors
 (RM’000) (RM’000)

Remunerati on 823 -
Fees 15 185

Total 838 185

The number of Directors of the Company whose remunerati on fell within the respecti ve bands is as follow:

 Executi ve Directors Non-Executi ve Directors

Below RM50,000 - 6
RM100,001 – RM250,000 2 -
RM250,001 – RM400,000 1 -
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3. SHAREHOLDERS

3.1 Communicati on and Investor Relati ons

The Board recognises the importance for the Company’s shareholders to be adequately informed 
of all material business matt ers pertaining to the Group. The Board has maintained an acti ve and 
constructi ve communicati on policy that enables the Board to communicate eff ecti vely with the 
Company’s shareholders and members of the public.

The Company has made regular and ti mely announcements of its quarterly results, audited fi nancial 
statements and annual reports, which have provided the Company’s shareholders and members of the 
public with the necessary insight into the Group’s business operati ons and fi nancial performance. All 
announcements are electronically published at BMSB’s website at www.bursamalaysia.com and at the 
Company’s website at www.apb-resources.com, this informati on is accessible at all ti me.

Mr. Tan Teng Khuan (Chief Operati ng Offi  cer and Executi ve Director) has been designated as the Group’s 
principal investor relati on offi  cer. Investors are welcome to direct their queries to him. The Group’s 
Corporate and Finance Division has met with insti tuti onal investors and investment analysts from 
ti me to ti me to explain and to provide informati on pertaining to the Group’s business operati ons and 
fi nancial performance.

3.2 Annual General Meeti ng

The Board recognises that AGM is an important forum to communicate with the Company’s shareholders 
on Group’s strategies, goals, business operati ons, fi nancial performance and major developments. It has 
been the Company’s practi se to send the Noti ce of the AGM and related documents to its shareholders 
at least twenty one (21) working days before the AGM.

The Company will hold its Nineth (9th) AGM on 23 March 2011 at 10.00 a.m.

At the AGM, the Board will present the progress and performance of the Group’s businesses as contained 
within the annual reports and this provides opportuniti es for shareholders to raise queries pertaining 
to the Group’s business acti viti es. All Directors will be available to respond to shareholders’ queries 
during the AGM. Nevertheless, in conducti ng these meeti ngs, the Board is mindful of “share price” 
sensiti ve informati on and the fair opportunity of informati on to shareholders and potenti al investors.
 

4. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

4.1 Financial Reporti ng

The Board is committ ed to present a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s fi nancial 
positi on and prospects to the Company’s shareholders and members of the public. These results 
and write-ups on the prospects are contained in the Company’s quarterly results, audited fi nancial 
statements and annual reports.

The Group’s fi nancial statements were prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 1965 and Financial Reporti ng Standards (“FRS”) issued by the Malaysian Accounti ng Standards 
Board (“MASB”) so as to give a true and fair view of the state of aff airs of the Group at 30 September 
2010. The Group’s quarterly results and fi nancial statements are reviewed and deliberated by the 
members of the Audit Committ ee in the presence of senior staff  members of the Group’s Corporate 
and Finance Division. The Group’s external and internal auditors are encouraged to att end, whenever 
possible.

All quarterly results and fi nancial statements have to be adopted by the Audit Committ ee before being 
recommended to the Board for its adopti on. The Audit Committ ee’s chairperson will brief the Board on 
any signifi cant matt ers including material changes that need to be made to the quarterly results and 
fi nancial statements.
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4. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (conti nued)

4.2 Internal Control

The Board affi  rms that it is their responsibility to maintain a sound system of internal controls that 
provides reasonable assurance in monitoring the eff ecti veness and effi  ciency of operati ons, reliability 
of management and fi nancial reporti ng, and compliance with applicable laws and regulati ons. The 
system of internal controls also aims to identi fy and to manage any risks that the Group may encounter 
in pursuit of its business objecti ves. The Board recognizes that reviewing the adequacy of the Group’s 
system of internal controls is a concerted and conti nuous process, and need to take into account the 
changes in the Group’s external and internal environment.

The Group’s Statement of Internal Control Statement is set out on pages 20 of this Annual Report.

4.3 Relati onship with the Auditors

The Board maintains a formal and transparent professional relati onship with the Group’s auditors, 
both external and internal, through the Audit Committ ee where full assistance has been extended to 
these auditors to enable them to discharge their duti es eff ecti vely. The Group’s external auditors will 
report independently to the Company’s shareholders as per statutory requirements. These auditors 
are invited to att end Audit Committ ee meeti ngs held from ti me to ti me and will highlight to the Audit 
Committ ee signifi cant matt ers requiring deliberati on and att enti on.

The roles of the Audit Committ ee in relati on to the external and internal auditors are as stated on pages 
16 to 19 of this Annual Report.

4.4 Compliance with Best Practi ses

Other than the separati on of Chairman and Managing Director, identi fi cati on of a senior independent 
non-executi ve director and the disclosure of detailed remunerati on of each director, the Board believes 
that the Best Practi ces of the Code have been complied with and will endeavour to ensure conti nual 
compliance.

The Board regards the presence of independent and non-executi ve directors as majority within the 
compositi on of the Board indicates the existence of strong independent elements within the Board. 
Therefore, the non-separati on of Chairman and Managing Director and naming of a senior independent 
non-executi ve director would not aff ect materially the Board balance of power and authority.

For the non-disclosure of detailed remunerati on of each director, the Board is of the view that the 
transparency of directors’ remunerati on has been suffi  ciently deal with by ‘band disclosure’ presented 
in this statement.

This statement is made in accordance with a resoluti on of the Board dated 27 January 2011.
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1. MEMBERSHIP AND MEETINGS

The Audit Committ ee comprises of four (4) members whereby all members of the Committ ee are Independent 
Non-Executi ve Directors.

The Audit Committ ee members are as follows:
(i) Mak Fong Ching (Ms.) - Chairperson;
(ii) Chua Eng Seng;
(iii) Johari Low bin Abdullah @ Low Han Hing; and
(iv) Muhayuddin bin Musa.

During the fi nancial year ended 30 September 2010, the Audit Committ ee has held fi ve (5) meeti ngs. Details 
of Audit Committ ee meeti ng att endances during the fi nancial year are as follows:

Name of Directors Number of Meeti ngs Att ended

Mak Fong Ching (Ms.) – Chairperson 4 / 5

Chua Eng Seng 4 / 5

Johari Low bin Abdullah @ Low Han Hing 5 / 5

Muhayuddin bin Musa 4 / 5

The Chief Operati ng Offi  cer and the Company Secretary were present by invitati on in all Audit Committ ee 
meeti ngs. Representati ves of the external auditors and internal auditors as well as other senior management 
personnel also att ended the Audit Committ ee meeti ngs by invitati on.
 

2. SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The Audit Committ ee has met at scheduled ti mes, with due noti ces of meeti ng issued and with agendas 
planned so that issues raised for Audit Committ ee were deliberated and discussed in a focused and detailed 
manner.

In line with the terms of reference for the Audit Committ ee, the following acti viti es were carried out during 
the fi nancial year ended 30 September 2010:

(i) Reviewed with external auditors the results of their auditi ng processes, their audit reports and their 
evaluati on of APB Resources Berhad (“the Company”) and its subsidiary companies’ (“the Group”) 
systems of internal control noted in the course of their audit;

(ii) Reviewed with internal auditors on the risk parameters unique to the Group, their internal auditi ng 
programmes, their scope of work and their audit plans;

(iii) The Audit Committ ee has met with the external auditors without the presence of any Executi ve Director 
and Group’s management;

(iv) Reviewed the related party transacti ons entered into by the Group, the process involved and the disclosure 
of such transacti ons within the Group’s Annual Report and interim unaudited fi nancial statements;

(v) Reviewed the interim unaudited fi nancial statements and year-end fi nancial statements with the Group’s 
management and external auditors, and recommended these fi nancial statements for approval by the 
Board of Directors of APB Resources Berhad (“the Board”); and

(vi) Reviewed the Company’s compliance with Bursa Malaysia Securiti es Berhad’s (“BMSB”) Listi ng 
Requirements, applicable approved accounti ng standards issued by the Malaysian Accounti ng Standards 
Board (“MASB”) and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements.

audit committee report
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3. INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTIONS

For the fi nancial year ended 30 September 2010, the Group has outsourced its internal audit functi ons to 
an independent consulti ng fi rm. The internal auditors have examined the adequacy and eff ecti veness of the 
Group’s systems of internal control, risk management processes and compliance frameworks. The internal 
auditors have also reviewed the Group’s business and operati onal processes and have conducted visits to the 
Group’s key business units.

Aft er each internal audit cycle, the internal auditors’ fi ndings and recommendati ons for improvement were 
communicated to the Group’s management for their responses and correcti ve acti ons, if necessary. These 
internal audit reports with the Group’s management responses were submitt ed to the Audit Committ ee for 
discussion and the Audit Committ ee has recommended these internal audit reports incorporati ng the Audit 
Committ ee’s comments to the Board for adopti on.

4. TERMS OF REFERENCE

4.1 Objecti ves

The primary functi on of the Audit Committ ee is to assist the Board in fulfi lling the oversight objecti ves 
on the Group’s acti viti es:

(i) To assist the Board in discharging the Board’s responsibiliti es on fi nancial reporti ng, evaluati ng the 
Group’s internal and external auditi ng processes, and assessing the Group’s processes relati ng to 
risks and control environment;

(ii) To enhance the percepti ons held by interested parti es such as shareholders, investors, regulators 
and creditors, on the objecti vity and credibility of the Group’s fi nancial reports; and

(iii) To maintain through regularly scheduled meeti ngs, a direct line of communicati on between the 
Board and the auditors.

4.2 Authority

The Audit Committ ee is authorised by the Board to investi gate any acti vity within its terms of reference 
and to seek any informati on it requires from any employee. All employees are directed to cooperate 
with any request made by the Audit Committ ee.

The Audit Committ ee is also authorised by the Board to obtain legal or other independent professional 
advice, and to secure the att endance of outsiders with relevant experience and experti se as and when 
the Audit Committ ee deem necessary.

4.3 Compositi on of Members

The Board shall elect and appoint Audit Committ ee members from amongst themselves, comprising 
not less than three (3) Directors, the majority of whom shall be Independent Non-Executi ve Directors. 
The term of offi  ce for the Audit Committ ee shall be for three (3) years and its members may be re-
nominated and re-appointed by the Board. If for any reason, the members of the Audit Committ ee be 
reduced to below three (3), the Board shall within three (3) months of the event appoint such number 
of new members as may be required to make-up the minimum number of three (3) members.

The members of the Audit Committ ee shall elect a Chairperson from amongst themselves. The 
appointment of the Chairperson of the Audit Committ ee shall be approved by the Board. The 
Chairperson of the Audit Committ ee shall be an Independent Non-Executi ve Director. All members 
of the Audit Committ ee, including the Chairperson, will hold offi  ce if they serve as Directors of the 
Company. Should any member cease to be a Director of the Company, his or her membership in the 
Audit Committ ee would cease forthwith. No Alternate Director of the Board shall be appointed as a 
member of the Audit Committ ee.

audit committee report (cont’d)
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4. TERMS OF REFERENCE (conti nued)

4.3 Compositi on of Members (conti nued)

The Board shall at all ti mes ensure that at least one (1) member of the Audit Committ ee shall be:

(i) A member of the Malaysian Insti tute of Accountants (“MIA”); or

(ii) If he or she is not a member of MIA, he must have at least three (3) years of working experience 
and:

(a) He must have passed the examinati ons specifi ed in Part I of the First (1st) Schedule of the 
Accountants Act, 1967; or

(b) He must be a member of one (1) of the associati ons of the accountants specifi ed in Part II 
of the First (1st) Schedule of the Accountants Act, 1967; or

(c) Fulfi ls such other requirements as prescribed by BMSB.

4.4 Meeti ngs

Meeti ngs shall be held not less than four (4) ti mes a year. The external auditors may request a meeti ng 
with the Audit Committ ee if the external auditors consider this necessary to discuss matt ers which they 
believe should be brought to the att enti on of the Audit Committ ee.

The external auditors shall appear before the Audit Committ ee as and when required. The external 
auditors shall have the right to appear and be heard at any meeti ngs of the Audit Committ ee. At least 
twice a year, the Audit Committ ee shall meet with the external auditors without any executi ve Board 
member present.

4.5 Quorum

The quorum for each meeti ng of the Audit Committ ee shall be a majority of members who are 
Independent Directors.

4.6 Secretary

The Company Secretary shall be the secretary of the Audit Committ ee.

4.7 Duti es and Responsibiliti es

In fulfi lling its primary objecti ves, the Audit Committ ee shall undertake the following duti es and 
responsibiliti es:

(i) To review with the Group’s external auditors on their audit plans, their evaluati on of the Group’s 
systems of internal control, the external auditors’ report on the Group’s fi nancial statements 
and the extent of cooperati on and assistance given by the Group’s employees to the external 
auditors;

(ii) To review the quarterly and year-end fi nancial statements with the Group’s management and 
external auditors, and to recommend these fi nancial statements for approval by the Board;

(iii) To review the scope, functi ons and resources for the internal audit functi ons and that these 
functi ons have the necessary authority to carry out their work;

(iv) To review the internal audit programmes, reports, and management’s responses to these 
reports;
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4. TERMS OF REFERENCE (conti nued)

4.7 Duti es and Responsibiliti es (conti nued)

(v) To review the coordinati on of audit approaches between external and internal auditors;

(vi) To confi rm that management has placed no restricti on on the internal and external auditors;

(vii) To review any resignati on from the external and internal auditors;

(viii) To nominate external and internal auditors for the Group;

(ix) To review the accounti ng policies adopted by the Group, any changes in accounti ng principles or 
practi ces, and level of prudence applied in areas requiring judgments;

(x) To review the interim fi nancial statements with the Group’s management and to recommend 
these interim fi nancial statements for approval by the Board, and to review press releases 
relati ng to Group’s fi nancial matt ers;

(xi) To review any related party transacti ons or confl ict of interest situati ons that may arise within the 
Group including any transacti ons, procedures or course of conduct that may aff ect management 
integrity;

(xii) To review any signifi cant transacti ons which are not normal for the Group’s businesses;

(xiii) To review the eff ecti veness of management informati on system (“MIS”) and other systems of 
control within the Group;

(xiv) To review processes established by management for compliance with other regulatory or 
reporti ng requirements; and

(xv) To perform such other duti es and responsibiliti es as may be agreed to by the Board.
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INTRODUCTION

The Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance requires 
listed companies to maintain a sound system of internal 
control to safeguard shareholders’ investments and 
the listed companies’ assets. Bursa Malaysia Securiti es 
Berhad’s Main Market Listi ng Requirements under 
Paragraph 15.26(b) requires directors of listed companies 
to include in the annual reports, a statement about 
the state of internal control of the listed company as a 
group.

RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of Directors of APB Resources Berhad (“the 
Board”) acknowledges the importance of having a 
sound system of internal control and risk management 
processes. The Board affi  rms that it is their responsibility 
to maintain a sound system of internal control that 
provides reasonable assurance in monitoring the 
eff ecti veness and effi  ciency of operati ons, reliability of 
management and fi nancial reporti ng, and compliance 
with applicable laws and regulati ons.

The Board also recognises that reviewing the adequacy 
and integrity of APB Resources Berhad (“the Company”) 
and its subsidiary companies’ (“the Group”) system of 
internal control is a concerted and conti nuous process. 
It should be noted that system of internal control is 
designed to manage rather than to eliminate risks of 
failure to achieve the Group’s business objecti ves. This 
is due to the limitati ons that are inherent in any system 
of internal control. Therefore, the Group’s systems 
of internal control can only  provide a reasonable and 
not absolute assurance against material misstatement 
of management and fi nancial informati on or against 
fi nancial losses or against fraud.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTIONS

The Group’s internal audit functi ons have been 
outsourced to an independent consulti ng fi rm for 
the fi nancial year ended 30 September 2010 to assist 
the Board to review and evaluate the adequacy and 
eff ecti veness of the Group’s systems of internal control, 
risk management processes and compliance frameworks. 
The internal auditors have also reviewed the Group’s 
business processes and have conducted visits to the 
Group’s key business units.

The internal auditors have reported their fi ndings and 
recommendati ons to the Company’s Audit Committ ee. 
The Audit Committ ee, by reviewing the internal auditors’ 
reports and by inquiring with the Group’s management, 
will then inform the Board on the adequacy and 
eff ecti veness of the Group’s systems of internal 
control, risk management processes and compliance 
frameworks.

KEY PROCESSES OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The key processes the Board has established to review 
the adequacy and integrity of the Group’s system of 
internal control are as follows:

(i) A clearly defi ned responsibiliti es and duti es, 
organisati on structure and authorizati on levels 
have been established and communicated by 
the Board to the Committ ees of the Board and 
to the management of key operati ng subsidiary 
companies;

(ii) The existence of an Executi ve Committ ee (“EXCO”) 
which comprises key members of the Group’s 
senior management. The EXCO’s principal role is to 
deliberate on strategic matt ers, capital expenditures, 
investment matt ers, remunerati on and other major 
corporate and operati onal issues. Issues deliberated 
at the EXCO are subsequently tabled to the Board 
for approval;

(iii) The Board meets at least once every quarter 
to deliberate on the Group’s management and 
fi nancial performances, business developments 
and corporate issues. The Board also reviews and 
approves the Group’s quarterly fi nancial results, 
audited fi nancial statements and annual reports;

(iv) The existence of an Environment, Safety and 
Health (“ESH”) Committ ee at a major subsidiary 
company of the Group comprising representati ves 
from various departments and this ESH Committ ee 
meets to deliberate on staff  safety and health issues 
in accordance with ESH policies; and

(v) Internal audits are conducted on a quarterly basis 
to review the system of internal control and the 
processes that are in place to identi fy, manage 
and report risks. The Audit Committ ee reviews the 
internal audit reports and highlights to the Board its 
acti viti es, fi ndings and recommendati ons.

CONCLUSION

The Board believes the above frameworks provide a 
reasonable assurance of the integrity of the Group’s 
system of internal control.

Nonetheless, the Board recognises that the processes 
of identi fi cati on, assessment and management of 
signifi cant business issues and risks facing the Group are 
conti nuous and should take into account the changes in 
the external and internal environment facing the Group.

This statement is made in accordance with a resoluti on 
of the Board dated 27 January 2011.

statement on internal control
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND CONTRACTS RELATING TO 
LOAN

There were no material contracts entered into by the 
Company and/or its subsidiary companies which involve 
Directors’ and/or substanti al shareholders’ interests for 
the fi nancial year ended 30 September 2010.

There were no contracts relati ng to loan entered into 
by the Company and/or its subsidiary companies which 
involve Directors’ and/or substanti al shareholders’ 
interests since the previous fi nancial year ended 30 
September 2009.

SHARE BUY-BACK

The Company has not undertaken any share buy-back 
exercise for the fi nancial year ended 30 September 
2010.

OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES

There was no issuance of opti ons, warrants or converti ble 
securiti es by the Company during the fi nancial year ended 
30 September 2010.

AMERICAN DEPOSITORY RECEIPT (“ADR”) OR GLOBAL 
DEPOSITORY RECEIPT (“GDR”) PROGRAMMES

The Company did not sponsor any ADR or GDR programme 
during the fi nancial year ended 30 September 2010.

IMPOSITION OF SANCTIONS AND/OR PENALTIES

There were no sancti ons or penalti es imposed on the 
Company and its subsidiary companies, Directors or 
management by the relevant regulatory bodies during 
the fi nancial year ended 30 September 2010.

NON-AUDIT FEES

The amount of non-audit fees paid to the external 
auditors for the fi nancial year ended 30 September 2010 
was RM5,000.

PROFIT ESTIMATE, FORECAST OR PROJECTION

The Company did not release any profi t esti mate, forecast 
or projecti on pertaining to the fi nancial year ended 30 
September 2010. There were no variances of 10% or 
more between the audited results for the fi nancial year 
ended 30 September 2010 and the unaudited results 
previously announced.

PROFIT GUARANTEE

The Company did not give any profi t guarantee to any 
parti es during the fi nancial year ended 30 September 
2010.

REVALUATION POLICY ON PROPERTIES

The Group revalues its properti es every fi ve (5) years 
and at shorter intervals whenever the fair values of the 
revalued assets are expected to diff er materially from 
their carrying amounts.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The details of remunerati on of Directors for the fi nancial 
year ended 30 September 2010 are stated on page 13 of 
this Annual Report.

RECURRENT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS OF 
REVENUE NATURE

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeti ng, the 
Company intends to seek its shareholders’ approval to 
renew the shareholders’ mandate for recurrent related 
party transacti ons of a revenue or trading nature. The 
details of the shareholders’ mandate to be sought are 
within the Circular to Shareholders dated 28 February 
2011 and are att ached to this Annual Report.

The details of recurrent related party transacti ons 
entered into for the fi nancial year ended 30 September 
2010 are as disclosed in note 28 of the accompanying 
fi nancial statements.
 

DISCLOSURE OF REALISED AND UNREALISED PROFITS 
OR LOSSES

The details of the disclosure of realised and unrealised 
profi ts or losses for the year ended 30 September 2010 
are as disclosed in note 29 of the accompanying fi nancial 
statements.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (“CSR”)

For the fi nancial year ended 30 September 2010, a 
subsidiary of the Company has conti nued the employment 
of a handicapped employee. The Company and/or its 
subsidiary companies are committ ed to employ and train 
local Malaysians for their fabricati on and non-destructi ve 
testi ng acti viti es.

disclosure requirements 
pursuant to the listing requirements of bursa malaysia securities berhad  
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The Directors are required by the Companies Act, 1965 to prepare fi nancial statements for each fi nancial year.  
These fi nancial statements are to be drawn up in accordance with Financial Reporti ng Standards issued by Malaysian 
Accounti ng Standards Board so as to give a true and fair view of the state of aff airs of the Group and of the Company 
at the end of each fi nancial year and of the results of their operati ons and cash fl ows for the fi nancial year.

In preparing these fi nancial statements, the Directors have:

• Adopted appropriate accounti ng policies and have applied these accounti ng policies consistently;

• Made judgments and esti mates that are deemed reasonable and prudent;

• Ensured that all applicable approved accounti ng standards have been adhered to; and

• Prepared these fi nancial statements on the basis of going concern.

The Directors have the responsibility to ensure that the Group and the Company have properly kept their accounti ng 
and other records and the registers as required by the Companies Act, 1965. These records and registers are to 
disclose with reasonable accuracy the fi nancial positi ons of the Group and the Company.

The Directors have the overall responsibiliti es for taking steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the 
assets of the Group and of the Company in order to prevent and detect fraud and other irregulariti es.

The Statement of Directors pursuant to Secti on 169(15) of the Companies Act, 1965 is set out on page 66 of the 
accompanying fi nancial statements.

statement of directors» responsibility 

for preparing the financial statements
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The Directors have pleasure in submitti  ng their report and the audited fi nancial statements of the Group and of the 
Company for the year ended 30 September 2010.

PRINCIPAL  ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding, whilst the principal acti viti es of its subsidiaries are stated 
in Note 5 to the fi nancial statements. There have been no signifi cant changes in the nature of these acti viti es during 
the fi nancial year.

RESULTS
   
 Group Company
 RM RM

Profi t for the year 4,881,982 9,712,356

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the fi nancial year under review.

DIVIDENDS 

Since the end of the previous fi nancial year, the Company declared and paid:

i)   a fi nal single-ti er exempt dividend of 3.0 sen per ordinary share totalling RM3,325,344 in respect of the year 
ended 30 September 2009 on 10 March 2010; and

ii) an interim single-ti er exempt dividend of 3.5 sen per ordinary share totalling RM3,879,577 in respect of the 
year ended 30 September 2010 on 22 June 2010.

The fi nal single-ti er exempt ordinary dividend recommended by the Directors in respect of the year ended 30 
September 2010 is 3.0 sen per ordinary share totalling RM3,325,344 which is subject to shareholders’ approval at 
the forthcoming Annual General Meeti ng. 

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY 

Directors who served since the date of the last report are:

Director Alternate

Yap Kow @ Yap Kim Fah Yap Swee Sang 
Tan Teng Khuan
Gan Chin Boon
Lim Hong Liang 
Yap Kau @ Yap Yeow Ho Yap Puhui Lin 
Chua Eng Seng
Johari Low bin Abdullah @ Low Han Hing
Mak Fong Ching 
Muhayuddin bin Musa

directors» report 

for the year ended 30 september 2010
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS 

The interests and deemed interests in the ordinary shares of the Company and of its related corporati ons (other 
than wholly-owned subsidiaries) of those who were Directors at the end of the fi nancial year (including the interests 
of the spouses or children of the Directors who themselves are not Directors of the Company) as recorded in the 
Register of Directors’ Shareholdings are as follows:

                           Number of ordinary shares of RM1.00 each
 At   At
 1.10.2009 Bought Sold    30.9.2010

Direct interest in the Company
Yap Kow @ Yap Kim Fah 12,939,404 -    -    12,939,404
Tan Teng Khuan 244,095 -    -    244,095 
Gan Chin Boon 925,157 -    -    925,157
Lim Hong Liang 9,659,345 -    -    9,659,345
Yap Kau @ Yap Yeow Ho 33,000 -    -    33,000
Muhayuddin bin Musa 1 -    -    1

 
Indirect interest in the Company

Yap Kow @ Yap Kim Fah   35,993,215 -     -    35,993,215
Tan Teng Khuan 30,876,000 -    (30,876,000) -    
Gan Chin Boon  30,876,000 -    (30,876,000) -    
Lim Hong Liang  31,492,569 -    -    31,492,569
Yap Kau @ Yap Yeow Ho
- own     5,117,215 -    -    5,117,215
- child 153,200 10,000 -    163,200
 

By virtue of their interests in the ordinary shares of the Company, the above Directors are also deemed interested 
in the shares of all its wholly-owned subsidiaries during the fi nancial year to the extent that APB Resources Berhad 
has an interest.

None of the other Directors holding offi  ce at 30 September 2010 had any interest in the ordinary shares of the 
Company and of its related corporati ons during the fi nancial year.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS 

Since the end of the previous fi nancial year, no Director of the Company has received nor become enti tled to receive 
any benefi t (other than a benefi t included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable 
by Directors as shown in the fi nancial statements or the fi xed salary of a full ti me employee of related corporati ons) 
by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporati on with the Director or with a fi rm of which 
the Director is a member, or with a company in which the Director has a substanti al fi nancial interest, other than 
certain Directors who may be deemed to derive a benefi t by virtue of trading transacti ons in the ordinary course of 
business between the Company or its related corporati ons in which the Directors have signifi cant fi nancial interests 
as disclosed in Note 28 to the fi nancial statements.

There were no arrangements during and at the end of the fi nancial year which had the object of enabling Directors 
of the Company to acquire benefi ts by means of the acquisiti on of shares in or debentures of the Company or any 
other body corporate.

directors» report 
for the year ended 30 september 2010 (cont’d)
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ISSUE OF SHARES OR DEBENTURES

There were no changes in the authorised, issued and paid-up capital of the Company during the fi nancial year. 

There were no debentures issued during the fi nancial year.

OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES 

No opti ons were granted to any person to take up unissued shares of the Company during the fi nancial year. 

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

Before the balance sheets and income statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the Directors 
took reasonable steps to ascertain that:

i) all known bad debts have been writt en off  and adequate provision made for doubtf ul debts, and 

ii) all current assets have been stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

At the date of this report, the Directors of the Company are not aware of any circumstances:

i) that would render the amount writt en off  for bad debts or the amount of the provision for doubtf ul debts in 
the Group and in the Company inadequate to any substanti al extent, or

ii) that would render the value att ributed to the current assets in the Group’s and in the Company’s fi nancial 
statements misleading, or

iii) which have arisen which render adherence to the existi ng method of valuati on of assets or liabiliti es of the 
Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate, or 

 
iv) not otherwise dealt with in this report or in the fi nancial statements, that would render any amount stated in 

the fi nancial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading. 

At the date of this report, there does not exist:

i) any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company that has arisen since the end of the fi nancial year and 
which secures the liabiliti es of any other person, or 

ii) any conti ngent liability in respect of the Group or of the Company that has arisen since the end of the fi nancial 
year. 

No conti ngent liability or other liability of any company within the Group has become enforceable, or is likely to 
become enforceable within the period of twelve months aft er the end of the fi nancial year which, in the opinion of 
the Directors, will or may substanti ally aff ect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligati ons 
as and when they fall due.

In the opinion of the Directors, except for the reversal of provision for liquidated and ascertained damages as 
disclosed in Note 17 to the fi nancial statements, the fi nancial performance of the Group and of the Company for the 
fi nancial year ended 30 September 2010 have not been substanti ally aff ected by any item, transacti on or event of a 
material and unusual nature nor has any such item, transacti on or event occurred in the interval between the end 
of that fi nancial year and the date of this report.

directors» report 
for the year ended 30 september 2010 (cont’d)
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AUDITORS

The auditors, Messrs KPMG, have indicated their willingness to accept re-appointment.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resoluti on of the Directors:

………………………………………………………..
Yap Kow @ Yap Kim Fah

………………………………………………………..
Tan Teng Khuan

Kuala Lumpur,

Date: 27 January 2011
 

directors» report 
for the year ended 30 september 2010 (cont’d)
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balance sheets 

at 30 september 2010

                           Group                      Company
  2010 2009 2010 2009
 Note RM RM RM RM

Assets

 Property, plant and equipment 3 58,580,354 60,889,962 -    -   
 Prepaid lease payments 4 15,604,708 15,880,744 -    -   
 Investment in subsidiaries 5 -    -    76,837,002 76,837,002
 Other investment 6 35,000 35,000 -    -   
 Intangible asset   7 13,458,008 13,458,008 -    -   

Total non-current assets        87,678,070  90,263,714 76,837,002 76,837,002

 Receivables, deposits and   
  prepayments 8 43,860,301 44,107,242 43,535,915 40,833,703
 Inventories  9 1,497,116 5,225,899 -    -   
 Current tax assets   3,108,845 3,423,623 180,725 180,725 
 Cash and cash equivalents 10 43,255,837 58,535,904 605,255 457,231
 
Total current assets  91,722,099 111,292,668 44,321,895 41,471,659
 
Total assets  179,400,169 201,556,382 121,158,897 118,308,661 

Equity
 Share capital 11 112,875,002 112,875,002 112,875,002 112,875,002
 Reserves 12 43,432,836 45,755,775 1,667,146 (840,289)

Total equity att ributable to 
 shareholders of the Company  156,307,838 158,630,777 114,542,148 112,034,713

Liabiliti es     
 Deferred tax liabiliti es  13 1,857,767 849,419 -    -    

Total non-current liabiliti es  1,857,767 849,419 -    -   

 Payables and accruals  14 13,809,627 30,318,426 6,616,749 6,273,948
 Provision for liquidated and
  ascertained damages  15 7,334,451 11,347,117 -    -   
 Current tax liabiliti es  90,486 410,643 -    -   

Total current liabiliti es   21,234,564 42,076,186 6,616,749 6,273,948
   
Total liabiliti es   23,092,331 42,925,605 6,616,749 6,273,948
   
Total equity and liabiliti es  179,400,169 201,556,382 121,158,897 118,308,661
   

The notes on pages 34 to 65 are an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
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income statements 

for the year ended 30 september 2010

                           Group                      Company
  2010 2009 2010 2009
 Note RM RM RM RM 

Revenue 16 128,698,928 162,634,691 10,496,760 5,818,856
Cost of goods sold 16 (108,335,859) (128,549,976) -    -   
  
Gross profi t 16 20,363,069 34,084,715 10,496,760 5,818,856
Other income  2,949,797 10,199,297 14,547 31,989
Administrati ve expenses  (12,065,597) (15,359,610) (798,951) (1,152,902)
Other expenses  (4,729,680) (712,266) -    -    

 
Operati ng profi t 17 6,517,589 28,212,136 9,712,356 4,697,943
Finance costs 18 (208,253) (303,139) -    (22,996)
  
Profi t before tax  6,309,336 27,908,997 9,712,356 4,674,947
Tax expense 20 (1,427,354) (4,485,731) -    (12,257) 

Profi t for the year  4,881,982 23,423,266 9,712,356 4,662,690 
 

Att ributable to:
 Shareholders of the Company  4,881,982 23,423,266 9,712,356 4,662,690
    
 
                           Group 
  2010   2009   
  sen   sen    
Basic earnings per ordinary 
 share: 21 4.40     23.21 
    

The notes on pages 34 to 65 are an integral part of these fi nancial statements.



30 ANNUAL REPORT 2010       APB RESOURCES BERHAD 564838-V

statements of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 september 2010
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statements of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 september 2010 (cont’d)
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cash flow statements
for the year ended 30 september 2010

                           Group                      Company
  2010 2009 2010 2009
  RM RM RM RM

Cash fl ows from operati ng acti viti es
 
  Profi t before tax  6,309,336  27,908,997 9,712,356 4,674,947
  Adjustments for:  
  Amorti sati on of prepaid
  lease payments  278,644 195,206 -    -   
  Depreciati on of property, plant
  and equipment  5,022,030 4,543,486 -    -   
  Dividend income  -    -    (10,496,760) (5,818,856)
  Dividend on ICPS  -    22,996 -    22,996
  Interest income  (876,200) (1,227,289) (14,547) (31,989)
   Net gain on disposal of plant
   and equipment  (65,329) (29) -    -   
  Net (reversal)/provision for liquidated 
       and ascertained damages  (3,629,339) 1,749,312 -    -    

 Net unrealised gain on foreign
   exchange  (118,190) (195,324) -    -   
  Plant and equipment writt en off   1 2 -    -   
  Reversal of accrual for recti fi cati on 
    works  -    (4,192,557) -    -   
  
  Operati ng profi t/(loss) before  
   changes in working capital   6,920,953 28,804,800 (798,951) (1,152,902)
  Changes in working capital:
  Inventories  3,728,783 2,414,616 -    -   
  Payables and accruals  (16,463,717) (3,789,877) 342,801 (1,180,617)
  Provision for liquidated and ascertained
   damages  (383,327) (101,430) -    -   
  Receivables, deposits and prepayments   320,049 2,351,041 (2,702,212) 22,153 

  Cash (used in)/generated from
   operati ons  (5,877,259) 29,679,150  (3,158,362) (2,311,366)
  Interest received  876,200 1,227,289 14,547 31,989 

  Tax paid  (2,775,957) (6,913,779) -    -   
  Tax refunded  2,351,572 165,652   -    165,619
   
  Net cash (used in)/from
   operati ng acti viti es  (5,425,444) 24,158,312 (3,143,815) (2,113,758) 
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cash flow statements
for the year ended 30 september 2010 (cont’d)

                           Group                      Company
  2010 2009 2010 2009
 Note RM RM RM RM

Cash fl ows from investi ng acti viti es

 Acquisiti on of prepaid lease payments  (2,608) (7,741,831) -    -    
 Acquisiti on of property, plant and 
  equipment  (2,788,894) (24,685,950) -    -    
 Dividend received from a subsidiary   -    -    10,496,760 5,818,856
 Pledged deposits withdrawn from 
    licensed banks  143,262 231,468 -    -    
 Proceeds from disposals of plant and
  equipment  141,800 168 -    -    
 Proceed from sale of a freehold building  -    415,000 -    -     

  
 Net cash (used in)/from 
  investi ng acti viti es  (2,506,440) (31,781,145) 10,496,760 5,818,856  
   
Cash fl ows from fi nancing acti vity
 
 Dividend paid  (7,204,921) (5,439,603) (7,204,921) (5,439,603)  
    

Net cash used in fi nancing acti vity  (7,204,921) (5,439,603) (7,204,921) (5,439,603) 
 

Net (decrease)/increase in 
 cash and cash equivalents  (15,136,805) (13,062,436) 148,024 (1,734,505)

Cash and cash equivalents at 
 1 October (i) 58,392,642 71,455,078 457,231 2,191,736
    
Cash and cash equivalents at  
 30 September (i) 43,255,837 58,392,642 605,255 457,231

(i)  Cash and cash equivalents

  Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash fl ow statements comprise the following balance sheet amounts:

                           Group                      Company
  2010 2009 2010 2009
  RM RM RM RM

  Cash and bank balances  7,980,973 5,565,828 208,185 117,942
  Short term funds  397,070 339,289 397,070 339,289 

 Deposits placed with licensed banks  34,877,794 52,630,787 -   -  
   
    43,255,837 58,535,904 605,255 457,231

  Less: Deposits pledged  -    (143,262) -   -  
    
    43,255,837 58,392,642 605,255 457,231

The notes on pages 34 to 65 are an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
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APB Resources Berhad is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia and is listed on 
the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securiti es Berhad. The addresses of its registered offi  ce and principal place of 
business of the Company are as follows:

Registered offi  ce
D12, Tingkat 1
Plaza Pekeliling
No. 2 Jalan Tun Razak
50400 Kuala Lumpur

Principal place of business
No. 47 (Lot 540), Jalan Batu Tiga TUDM
Kampung Baru Subang
Seksyen U6, 40150 Shah Alam
Selangor Darul Ehsan

The consolidated fi nancial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 30 September 2010 comprise 
the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group). The fi nancial statements of the Company as at 
and for the year ended 30 September 2010 do not include other enti ti es.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding, whilst the principal acti viti es of its subsidiaries are stated 
in Note 5 to the fi nancial statements.

The fi nancial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 January 2011.

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The fi nancial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with 
Financial Reporti ng Standards (FRS), generally accepted accounti ng principles and the Companies Act, 1965 
in Malaysia. These fi nancial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Listi ng 
Requirements of the Bursa Malaysia Securiti es Berhad.

The Group and the Company have not applied the following accounti ng standards, amendments and 
interpretati ons that have been issued by the Malaysian Accounti ng Standards Board (MASB) but are not yet 
eff ecti ve for the Group and the Company:

FRSs, Interpretati ons and amendments eff ecti ve for annual periods beginning on or aft er 1 January 
2010

• FRS 4, Insurance Contracts 
• FRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures
• FRS 101, Presentati on of Financial Statements (revised)
• FRS 123, Borrowing Costs (revised)
• FRS 139, Financial Instruments: Recogniti on and Measurement
• Amendments to FRS 1, First-ti me Adopti on of Financial Reporti ng Standards 
• Amendments to FRS 2, Share-based Payment: Vesti ng Conditi ons and Cancellati ons
• Amendments to FRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures
• Amendments to FRS 101, Presentati on of Financial Statements - Putt able Financial Instruments and 

Obligati ons Arising on Liquidati on
• Amendments to FRS 127, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements: Cost of an Investment in a 

Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Enti ty or Associate
• Amendments to FRS 132, Financial Instruments: Presentati on
 - Putt able Financial Instruments and Obligati ons Arising on Liquidati on
 - Separati on of Compound Instruments
• Amendments to FRS 139, Financial Instruments: Recogniti on and Measurement
 - Reclassifi cati on of Financial Assets
 - Collecti ve Assessment of Impairment for Banking Insti tuti ons

notes to the financial statements
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(a) Statement of compliance (conti nued)

• Improvements to FRSs (2009)
• IC Interpretati on 9, Reassessment of Embedded Derivati ves
• IC Interpretati on 10, Interim Financial Reporti ng and Impairment
• IC Interpretati on 11, FRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transacti ons 
• IC Interpretati on 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes 
• IC Interpretati on 14, FRS 119 - The Limit on a Defi ned Benefi t Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and 

Their Interacti on

FRSs, Interpretati ons and amendments eff ecti ve for annual periods beginning on or aft er 1 March 2010
• Amendments to FRS 132, Financial Instruments: Presentati on - Classifi cati on of Rights Issues

FRSs, Interpretati ons and amendments eff ecti ve for annual periods beginning on or aft er 1 July 2010
• FRS 1, First-ti me Adopti on of Financial Reporti ng Standards (revised)
• FRS 3, Business Combinati ons (revised)
• FRS 127, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (revised)
• Amendments to FRS 2, Share-based Payment
• Amendments to FRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Disconti nued Operati ons
• Amendments to FRS 138, Intangible Assets
• IC Interpretati on 12, Service Concession Agreements
• IC Interpretati on 16, Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operati on
• IC Interpretati on 17, Distributi ons of Non-cash Assets to Owners
• Amendments to IC Interpretati on 9, Reassessment of Embedded Derivati ves

FRSs, Interpretati ons and amendments eff ecti ve for annual periods beginning on or aft er 1 January 
2011
• Amendments to FRS 1, First-ti me Adopti on of Financial Reporti ng Standards
 - Limited Exempti on from Comparati ve FRS 7 Disclosures for First-ti me Adopter
 - Additi onal Exempti ons for First-ti me Adopters
• Amendments to FRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Improving Disclosures about Financial 

Instruments
• Amendments to FRS 2, ¬Group Cash-sett led Shared Based Payment Transacti ons
• IC Interpretati on 4, Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
• IC Interpretati on 18, Transfers of Assets from Customers
• Improvements to FRSs (2010)

FRSs, Interpretati ons and amendments eff ecti ve for annual periods beginning on or aft er 1 July 2011 
• IC Interpretati on 19, Exti nguishing Financial Liabiliti es with Equity Instruments
• Amendments to IC Interpretati on 14, Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

FRSs, Interpretati ons and amendments eff ecti ve for annual periods beginning on or aft er 1 January 
2012
• FRS 124, Related Party Disclosures (revised)
• IC Interpretati on 15, Agreements for the Constructi on of Real Estate

notes to the financial statements (cont’d)
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(a) Statement of compliance (conti nued)

The Group and the Company plan to apply the abovementi oned standards, amendments and 
interpretati ons:

• from the annual period beginning 1 October 2010 for those standards, amendments or interpretati ons 
that will be eff ecti ve for annual periods beginning on or aft er 1 January 2010, 1 March 2010 and 1 July 
2010, except for FRS 4, FRS 123, Amendments to FRS 2, Amendments to FRS 127, IC Interpretati on 10, 
IC Interpretati on 11, FRS 2, IC Interpretati on 13, IC Interpretati on 14, FRS 119, IC Interpretati on 12, and 
IC Interpretati on 16 which are not applicable to the Group and the Company; 

• from the annual period beginning 1 October 2011 for those standards, amendments or interpretati ons 
that will be eff ecti ve for annual periods beginning on or aft er 1 January 2011 and 1 July 2011, except 
for Amendments to FRS 2, IC Interpretati on 4, IC Interpretati on 18, Amendments to IC 14 and IC 
Interpretati on 19 which are not applicable to the Group and the Company; and

• from the annual period beginning 1 October 2012 for those standards, amendments or interpretati ons 
that will be eff ecti ve for annual periods beginning on or aft er 1 January 2012, except for IC Interpretati on 
15 which is not applicable to the Group and the Company.

The initi al applicati on of a standard, an amendment or an interpretati on, which will be applied prospecti vely, 
is not expected to have any fi nancial impacts to the current and prior periods fi nancial statements upon 
their fi rst adopti on.

The impacts and disclosures as required by FRS 108.30(b), Accounti ng Policies, Changes in Accounti ng 
Esti mates and Errors, in respect of applying FRS 7 and FRS 139 are not disclosed by virtue of the exempti ons 
given in these respecti ve FRSs.

Material impacts of initi al applicati on of a standard, an amendment or an interpretati on, which will be 
applied retrospecti vely, are disclosed below:

  Improvements to FRSs (2009)

Improvements to FRSs (2009) contain various amendments that result in accounti ng changes for presentati on, 
recogniti on or measurement and disclosure purposes. Amendments that have material impact are:

•  FRS 117, Leases

 The amendments clarify the classifi cati on of lease of land and require enti ti es with existi ng leases of 
land and buildings to reassess the classifi cati on of land as fi nance or operati ng lease. Leasehold land 
which in substance is a fi nance lease will be reclassifi ed to property, plant and equipment. 

 The adopti on of these amendments will result in a change in accounti ng policy which will be applied 
retrospecti vely in accordance with the transiti onal provisions. This change in accounti ng policy will result 
in reclassifi cati on of lease of land from prepaid lease payments to property, plant and equipment.

(b)  Basis of measurement

The fi nancial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as disclosed in the notes to 
the fi nancial statements. 

(c) Functi onal and presentati on currency

These fi nancial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is the Company’s functi onal 
currency. All fi nancial informati on is presented in RM, unless otherwise stated.

notes to the financial statements (cont’d)
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

d)  Use of esti mates and judgements

The preparati on of fi nancial statements requires management to make judgements, esti mates and 
assumpti ons that aff ect the applicati on of accounti ng policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabiliti es, 
income and expenses. Actual results may diff er from these esti mates.
 
Esti mates and underlying assumpti ons are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounti ng esti mates 
are recognised in the period in which the esti mate is revised and in any future periods aff ected.

There are no signifi cant areas of esti mati on uncertainty and criti cal judgements in applying accounti ng 
policies that have signifi cant eff ect on the amounts recognised in the fi nancial statements other than those 
disclosed in the following notes: 
 
• Note 7 - measurement of the recoverable amounts of cash-generati ng units 
• Note 8 - valuati on of trade receivables

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
  

The accounti ng policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in these fi nancial 
statements, and have been applied consistently by Group’s enti ti es, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of consolidati on
 
(i) Subsidiaries

 Subsidiaries are enti ti es, including unincorporated enti ti es, controlled by the Group. Control exists 
when the Group has the ability to exercise its power to govern the fi nancial and operati ng policies 
of an enti ty so as to obtain benefi ts from its acti viti es. In assessing control, potenti al voti ng rights 
that presently are exercisable are taken into account. Subsidiaries are consolidated using the purchase 
method of accounti ng.

 
 Under the purchase method of accounti ng, the fi nancial statements of subsidiaries are included in the 

consolidated fi nancial statements from the date that the control commences unti l the date that control 
ceases. 

 Investment in subsidiaries is stated in the Company’s balance sheet at cost less any impairment 
losses.

(ii) Transacti ons eliminated on consolidati on 

 Intra-group balances and transacti ons, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-
group transacti ons, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated fi nancial statements.

 Unrealised gains arising from transacti ons with subsidiaries are eliminated. Unrealised losses are 
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of 
impairment.

(b) Foreign currency 

Transacti ons in foreign currencies are translated to the functi onal currency of the Group’s enti ti es at exchange 
rates at the dates of the transacti ons. Monetary assets and liabiliti es denominated in foreign currencies at 
the balance sheet date are retranslated to the functi onal currency at the exchange rates at that date. Non-
monetary assets and liabiliti es denominated in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates at the 
dates of the transacti ons except for those that are measured at fair value, which are retranslated to the 
functi onal currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Foreign currency 
diff erences arising on retranslati on are recognised in the income statement.

notes to the financial statements (cont’d)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
  

(c) Property, plant and equipment

(i) Recogniti on and measurement

 Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost/valuati on less any accumulated depreciati on 
and any impairment losses. 

 Property, plant and equipment under the revaluati on model

 The Group revalues its building properti es every 5 years and at shorter intervals whenever the fair value 
of the revalued assets is expected to diff er materially from their carrying value. Additi ons subsequent 
to the date of valuati on are stated at cost unti l the next revaluati on exercise.

 Surpluses arising from revaluati on are dealt with in the revaluati on reserve account. Any defi cit arising 
is off set against the revaluati on reserve to the extent of a previous increase for the same property. In 
all other cases, a decrease in carrying amount is charged to the income statement.

 Cost includes expenditures that are directly att ributable to the acquisiti on of the asset and any other 
costs directly att ributable to bringing the asset to working conditi on for its intended use, and the costs 
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. The cost of 
self-constructed assets also includes the cost of materials and direct labour. Purchased soft ware that is 
integral to the functi onality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

 When signifi cant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have diff erent useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

 Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing 
the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are 
recognised net within “other income” or “other expenses” respecti vely in the income statements. 
When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in the revaluati on surplus reserve are transferred 
to retained earnings.

(ii) Subsequent costs

 The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying 
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefi ts embodied within the part will 
fl ow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is 
derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in 
the income statements as incurred.

(iii) Depreciati on

 Depreciati on is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the esti mated useful 
lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment. Leased assets are depreciated over the 
shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Group will obtain 
ownership by the end of the lease term.

 The esti mated useful lives for the current and comparati ve periods are as follows:

  Freehold building 50 years
  Leasehold buildings 51 - 57 years
  Furniture, fi tti  ngs, offi  ce equipment and renovati on 5 - 10 years
  Motor vehicles 5 years
  Plant and machineries and testi ng equipment 5 - 10 years  

 Depreciati on methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the balance sheet date.

notes to the financial statements (cont’d)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
  

(d) Prepaid lease payments
 
Leasehold land that normally has an indefi nite economic life and ti tle is not expected to pass to the lessee 
by the end of the lease term is treated as an operati ng lease. The payment made on entering into or 
acquiring a leasehold land is accounted for as prepaid lease payments that are amorti sed over the lease 
term in accordance with the patt ern of benefi ts provided.

Revalued leasehold land

The Group had previously revalued its leasehold land and has retained the unamorti sed revalued amount 
as the surrogate carrying amount of prepaid lease payments in accordance with the transiti onal provisions 
in FRS 117.67A. Such prepaid lease payments is amorti sed over the lease term.

(e) Investments

Long term investment other than investment in subsidiaries is stated at cost. An allowance is made when 
the Directors are of the view that there is a diminuti on in their value which is other than temporary.

(f) Intangible asset

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on business combinati ons and is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment 
losses.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the acquisiti on over the Group’s interest in the net fair value 
of the identi fi able assets, liabiliti es and conti ngent liabiliti es of the acquiree.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s identi fi able assets, liabiliti es and 
conti ngent liabiliti es over the cost of the acquisiti on is recognised immediately in income statement.

Amorti sati on

Goodwill is not amorti sed but is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indicati on that 
it may be impaired.

(g) Receivables

Receivables are initi ally recognised at their cost when the contractual right to receive cash or another 
fi nancial asset from another enti ty is established.

Subsequent to initi al recogniti on, receivables are stated at cost less allowance for doubtf ul debts.

Receivables are not held for the purpose of trading.

(h) Amount due from/(to) contract customers

Amount due from/(to) contract customers on fi xed price contracts is stated at cost plus att ributable profi ts 
less foreseeable losses and progress billings. Cost includes all direct contract costs and other related costs. 
Where progress billings exceed the aggregate amount due from contract customers plus att ributable profi ts 
less foreseeable losses, the net credit balance on all such contracts is shown in payables and accruals as 
amount due to contract customers.

notes to the financial statements (cont’d)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
  

(i)  Inventories  

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on 
the fi rst-in-fi rst-out principle and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing 
them to their existi ng locati on and conditi on.

Net realisable value is the esti mated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the esti mated 
costs of completi on and the esti mated costs necessary to make the sale.

(j) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances and deposits placed with banks. For the 
purpose of the cash fl ow statement, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of pledged deposits.

(k)  Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of the assets except for fi nancial assets (other than investment in subsidiaries and 
other investment), inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporti ng date to determine 
whether there is any indicati on of impairment. If any such indicati on exists, then the asset’s recoverable 
amount is esti mated. For goodwill, the recoverable amount is esti mated usually at each reporti ng date.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generati ng unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value 
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the esti mated future cash fl ows are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that refl ects current market assessments of the ti me value of money and 
the risks specifi c to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testi ng, assets are grouped together into the 
smallest group of assets that generates cash infl ows from conti nuing use that are largely independent of 
the cash infl ows of other assets or groups of assets (the cash-generati ng unit). The goodwill acquired in a 
business combinati on, for the purpose of impairment testi ng, is allocated to cash-generati ng units that are 
expected to benefi t from the synergies of the combinati on.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generati ng unit exceeds its 
recoverable amount unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is 
recognised directly against any revaluati on surplus for the asset to the extent that the impairment loss does 
not exceed the amount in the revaluati on surplus for that same asset. Impairment losses are recognised 
in the income statements. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generati ng units are allocated 
fi rst to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying 
amount of the other assets in the unit (groups of units) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses 
recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporti ng date for any indicati ons that the loss has 
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the esti mates 
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the 
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciati on or amorti sati on, if no impairment loss had been recognised. Reversals of impairment losses 
are credited to the income statements in the year in which the reversals are recognised, unless it reverses 
an impairment loss on a revalued asset, in which case it is credited directly to revaluati on surplus. Where 
an impairment loss on the same revalued asset was previously recognised in the income statements, a 
reversal of that impairment loss is also recognised in the income statements.

(l) Equity instruments

All equity instruments are stated at cost on initi al recogniti on and are not re-measured subsequently.

(i) Issue expenses

 Costs directly att ributable to issue of equity instruments are recognised as a deducti on from equity.

notes to the financial statements (cont’d)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
  

(l) Equity instruments (conti nued)

(ii) Repurchase of share capital 

 When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the amount of the considerati on paid, including 
directly att ributable costs, is recognised as a deducti on from equity and is not re-valued for subsequent 
changes in the fair value or market price of shares. Repurchased shares not subsequently cancelled are 
classifi ed as treasury shares and are presented as a deducti on from total equity.

 Where treasury shares are distributed as share dividends, the cost of the treasury shares is applied in 
the reducti on of the share premium account or distributable reserves, or both.

 Where treasury shares are reissued by re-sale in the open market, the diff erence between the sales 
considerati on net of directly att ributable costs and the carrying amount of the treasury shares is 
recognised in equity. 

(m) Employee benefi ts

Short term employee benefi ts

Short-term employee benefi t obligati ons in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and sick 
leave are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

A provision is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profi t-sharing 
plans if the Group has a present legal or constructi ve obligati on to pay this amount as a result of past 
service provided by the employee and the obligati on can be esti mated reliably.

The Group’s contributi on to the Employees’ Provident Funds are charged to the income statements in 
the year to which they relate. Once the contributi ons have been paid, the Group has no further payment 
obligati ons.

(n) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructi ve 
obligati on that can be esti mated reliably, and it is probable that an outf low of economic benefi ts will be 
required to sett le the obligati on.

(i) Provision for liquidated and ascertained damages

 Provision for liquidated and ascertained damages is recognised immediately in the income statements 
when there is a potenti al delay or failure to complete and handover the equipment or projects at 
sti pulated completi on and handover date. 

(ii) Conti ngent liabiliti es

 Where it is not probable that an outf low of economic benefi ts will be required, or the amount cannot be 
esti mated reliably, the obligati on is disclosed as a conti ngent liability, unless the probability of outf low 
of economic benefi ts is remote. Possible obligati ons, whose existence will only be confi rmed by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as conti ngent liabiliti es 
unless the probability of outf low of economic benefi ts is remote. 

 Where the Company enters into fi nancial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other 
companies within the Group, the Company considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts 
for them as such.  In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as a conti ngent liability 
unti l such ti me as it becomes probable that the Company will be required to make a payment under the 
guarantee.  
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
  

(o) Payables

Payables are measured initi ally and subsequently at cost. Payables are recognised when there is a contractual 
obligati on to deliver cash or another fi nancial asset to another enti ty.

(p)  Derivati ve fi nancial instruments 
 
The Group holds derivati ve fi nancial instruments to hedge its foreign currency risk exposures.
 
Forward foreign exchange contracts are accounted for on an equivalent basis as the underlying assets, 
liabiliti es or net positi ons. Any profi t or loss arising is recognised on the same basis as that arising from the 
related assets, liabiliti es or net positi ons.

(q) Irredeemable Converti ble Preference Shares

The Irredeemable Converti ble Preference Shares (ICPS) issued by the Company comprises both liability and 
equity components. The components are derived using the Residual Value of Equity Component Method.

The liability component is recognised initi ally at the fair value of a similar liability that does not have an 
equity conversion opti on. The equity component is recognised initi ally at the diff erence between the fair 
value of the compound fi nancial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability component. 

Subsequent to initi al recogniti on, the liability component is measured at amorti sed cost using eff ecti ve 
interest rate. At each reporti ng date, the equity component will be recapitalised with reference to the 
dividend paid.

(r) Revenue

(i) Fixed price contracts

 Revenue from fi xed price contracts is recognised in the income statements on the percentage of 
completi on method, measured by reference to the proporti on of contract costs incurred for contract 
work performed to date that refl ect work performed bear to the total esti mated contract costs.

 When the outcome of a contract cannot be esti mated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent 
of contract costs incurred that is probable to be recoverable and the contract costs are recognised as 
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

 An expected loss on a contract is recognised immediately in the income statements.

(ii) Goods sold and services rendered 

 Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at fair value of the considerati on received or receivable, 
net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is recognised when 
the signifi cant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the 
considerati on is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be esti mated reliably, 
and there is no conti nuing management involvement with the goods.

 Revenue from services rendered is recognised in the income statements in proporti on to the stage 
of completi on of the transacti on at the balance sheet date. The stage of completi on is assessed by 
reference to services performed to date as a percentage of total services to be performed.

  
(iii) Dividend income

 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
  

(s) Interest income

Interest income is recognised in the income statements as it accrues, using the eff ecti ve interest method.

(t) Tax expense

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the income statements except 
to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or 
substanti vely enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous 
years.

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary diff erences between 
the carrying amounts of assets and liabiliti es for reporti ng purposes and the amounts used for taxati on 
purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for the temporary diff erences arising from the initi al recogniti on of 
goodwill and the initi al recogniti on of assets or liabiliti es in a transacti on that is not a business combinati on 
and that aff ects neither accounti ng nor taxable profi t (tax loss). Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates 
that are expected to be applied to the temporary diff erences when they reverse, based on the laws that 
have been enacted or substanti vely enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary diff erences.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profi ts will be available 
against which temporary diff erence can be uti lised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporti ng date 
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefi t will be realised.

Unuti lised reinvestment allowance and investment tax allowance are treated as tax base of assets and are 
recognised as a reducti on of tax expense as and when they are uti lised.

(u) Earnings per share

The Group presents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by 
dividing the profi t or loss att ributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. 

(v) Segment reporti ng

A segment is a disti nguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing products or 
services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a parti cular economic environment 
(geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are diff erent from those of other 
segments.
 

(w) Operati ng leases

Leases, where the Group does not assume substanti ally all the risks and rewards of ownership are classifi ed 
as operati ng leases and the leased assets are not recognised on the Group’s balance sheet.
 
Payments made under operati ng leases are recognised in the income statements on a straight-line basis 
over the term of the lease unless another systemati c basis is more representati ve of the ti me patt ern in 
which economic benefi ts from the leased asset are consumed. Lease incenti ves received are recognised as 
an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease. Conti ngent rentals are charged to 
income statements in the reporti ng period in which they are incurred. 
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

    Furniture,  Plant and 
    fi tti  ngs, offi  ce   machineries
Group Freehold  Leasehold equipment  Motor and testi ng
  building buildings and renovati on vehicles equipment Total
Cost/Valuati on RM RM RM RM RM RM
 
At 1 October 2008 320,000 20,586,040 4,258,909 3,134,018 46,084,871 74,383,838
Additi ons -    18,398,767 124,394 650 6,162,139 24,685,950
Disposals -    -    -    (650) -    (650)
Writt en-off  -    -    -    -   (38,780) (38,780)
   
At 30 September 2009/
 1 October 2009 320,000 38,984,807 4,383,303 3,134,018 52,208,230 99,030,358
Additi ons -    414,698 149,131 647,691 1,577,374 2,788,894
Disposals -    -    (9,834) (176,587) (20,000)  (206,421)
Writt en-off  -    -    -    (21,608) -    (21,608)
   
At 30 September 2010 320,000 39,399,505 4,522,600 3,583,514 53,765,604 101,591,223
   

Representi ng items at:
Cost - 18,859,505 4,522,600 3,583,514 53,765,604 80,731,223   
Valuati on - 2007 320,000 20,540,000 - - - 20,860,000
   
At 30 September 2010 320,000  39,399,505 4,522,600 3,583,514 53,765,604 101,591,223

Depreciati on 
At 1 October 2008 6,400 370,117 2,675,462 2,566,709 28,017,511 33,636,199
Charge for the year 6,400 459,991 276,693 172,650 3,627,752 4,543,486
Disposals -    -    -    (511) -    (511)
Writt en-off  -    -    -    -    (38,778) (38,778)
  
At 30 September 2009/
 1 October 2009 12,800 830,108 2,952,155 2,738,848 31,606,485 38,140,396
Charge for the year 6,400 708,180 275,173 187,474 3,844,803 5,022,030
Disposals -    -      (3,548) (106,402) (20,000) (129,950) 
Writt en-off  -    -    -    (21,607) -    (21,607)
   
At 30 September 2010 19,200 1,538,288 3,223,780 2,798,313 35,431,288 43,010,869
   
Carrying amounts

At 30 September 2008 313,600 20,215,923 1,583,447 567,309 18,067,360 40,747,639 
 
At 30 September 2009/
 1 October 2009 307,200 38,154,699 1,431,148 395,170 20,601,745 60,889,962
   
At 30 September 2010 300,800 37,861,217 1,298,820 785,201 18,334,316 58,580,354
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
  

3.1 Property under the revaluati on model

a) Freehold building was revalued by the Directors in 2007 based on   valuati on carried out on 30 
September 2007 by Mr. Long Tian Chek, an independent registered professional valuer with Henry 
Butcher Malaysia Sdn. Bhd., using the open market valuati on method.

 Had the freehold building been carried under the cost model, its carrying amount would has been 
RM214,660 (2009 – RM220,039).

b) Leasehold buildings were revalued by the Directors in 2007 based on valuati ons carried out on 30 
September 2007 by independent registered professional valuers using the open market valuati on 
method as follows: 

(i) Valuati on made by Mr. Kow Lay Seng, a registered valuer with Henry Butcher Malaysia (Kuantan) 
Sdn. Bhd. on 30 September 2007 in respect of leasehold buildings stated at RM16,100,000. 

(ii) Valuati on made by Mr. Long Tian Chek, a registered valuer with Henry Butcher Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. 
on 30 September 2007 in respect of a leasehold building stated at RM4,440,000. 

 Had the leasehold buildings been carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciati on, their carrying 
amounts of the revalued assets that would have been included in the fi nancial statements at the end 
of the year would have been RM18,307,713 (2009 – RM18,653,451). 

4. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

 Group
Long term leasehold land unexpired lease
 period of more 
 than 50 years
 RM
Cost

At 1 October 2008 9,373,000
Additi ons 7,741,831
 
At 30 September 2009/1 October 2009 17,114,831
Additi ons 2,608

At 30 September 2010 17,117,439
 
Amorti sati on
At 1 October 2008 1,038,881
Amorti sati on for the year 195,206
 
At 30 September 2009/1 October 2009 1,234,087
Amorti sati on for the year 278,644
 
At 30 September 2010 1,512,731
 
Carrying amounts
At 1 October 2008 8,334,119
 
At 30 September 2009/1 October 2009 15,880,744
 
At 30 September 2010 15,604,708
 

The Group’s long term leasehold land were revalued by the Directors in 2002 based on professional valuati ons 
using the open market valuati on method.
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5. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 

                                                Company
    2010 2009
    RM RM

Unquoted shares, at cost    76,837,002 76,837,002
      

Details of the subsidiaries, all of which are incorporated in Malaysia, are as follows:

     
  Eff ecti ve

   ownership
Name of subsidiary Principal acti vity  interest  

   2010  2009
   % %
Subsidiaries of APB Resources 
 Berhad:  

Era Julung Sdn. Bhd. Investment holding 100 100

Landas Fikir Sdn. Bhd. * Dormant 100 100

Subsidiaries of Era Julung 
 Sdn. Bhd.: 

Prescan Sdn. Bhd. Provision of non-destructi ve testi ng
  services and other related services 100 100 
 
Amalgamated Metal   Fabricati on of specialised design and
 Corporati on (M) Sdn. Bhd. manufacturing of engineering
  equipment        100 100
 
Subsidiaries of Amalgamated Metal  
 Corporati on (M) Sdn. Bhd.: 

 Finned Tubes Malaysia  Fabricati on of fi nned tubes 100 100
  Sdn. Bhd. 

*  This subsidiary is audited by another fi rm of Chartered Accountants.

6. OTHER INVESTMENT 
   
 Group 
    2010 2009
    RM RM

Other investment, at cost    75,000 75,000
Less: Allowance for diminuti on in value    (40,000) (40,000)
    
     35,000 35,000
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7. INTANGIBLE ASSET
   
 Group 
    2010 2009

Goodwill    RM RM 

Cost
At 1 October 2008 / 30 September 2009 /
 1 October 2009 / 30 September 2010    13,458,008 13,458,008
    
Impairment testi ng for cash-generati ng unit containing goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testi ng, goodwill is allocated to the Group’s fabricati on and non-destructi ve 
testi ng divisions which represent the highest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for 
internal management purposes.

The recoverable amount for the above was based on its value in use and was determined by discounti ng 
the future cash fl ows generated from the conti nuing use of those units and was based on the following key 
assumpti ons:

(i) Cash fl ows were projected based on actual operati ng results and ten (10) years projecti on was used for 
determining the value in use.

(ii) Revenue was projected at RM130.5 million for the fi rst year and an anti cipated growth by 5% (2009: 5%) 
per annum thereon.

(iii) Eff ecti ve tax rates were projected to be 25% for the next ten (10) years.

(iv) A pre-tax discount rate of 7.30% (2009: 6.50%) was applied in determining the recoverable amount of those 
units. The discount rate was esti mated based on the Group’s esti mated rate of borrowings, which was 
based on a possible range of debt leveraging of 1% at the market interest rate of 6.3%.

The values assigned to the key assumpti ons represent management’s assessment of future trends in the industry 
and are based on both external sources and internal sources (historical data).
 
 The Group will not suff er any impairment loss even if the above esti mates experienced the following changes:

• An increase in 1% in the pre-tax discount rate.
• A 10% decrease in the future planned revenue.

8. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
                           Group                      Company
  2010 2009 2010 2009
 Note RM RM RM RM

 Trade
 Trade receivables     8.1, 8.2 29,705,569 36,999,920 -     -   
 Less: Allowance for  

 doubtf ul debts 8.3 (3,608,636) (3,159,376) -     -    
 

    26,096,933 33,840,544 -     -   
 Amount due from  

 contract customers 8.4 16,151,908 9,333,496 -     -   
    
    42,248,841 43,174,040 -     -   
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8. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

                           Group                      Company
  2010 2009 2010 2009
 Note RM RM RM RM

 Non-trade      
 Other receivables  8.5 856,752 443,855 6,665 6,665
 Deposits  529,287 282,355 -     -   
 Prepayments  225,421 206,992 -     -   
 Amount due from 

 subsidiaries         8.6 -    -    43,529,250 40,827,038 
  

    1,611,460 933,202 43,535,915 40,833,703
    
    43,860,301 44,107,242 43,535,915 40,833,703
 

8.1 Analysis of foreign currency exposure for signifi cant trade receivables
 

 Signifi cant trade receivables outstanding at year end that are not in the functi onal currency of the Group’s 
enti ti es are as follows:

   
 Group
    2010 2009 
    RM RM

Functi onal currency Foreign currency    
RM USD   13,091,824 17,782,482
RM EURO   3,867,917 1,697,977       
RM SGD   349,494 2,355,601
   

 
8.2 Retenti on sums

  
 Group
    2010 2009 
    RM RM

Retenti on sums included in trade receivables   4,527,582 7,884,567
    

Retenti on sums are unsecured, interest-free and are expected to be collected as follows:
 

    2010 2009
    RM RM

Within 1 year    4,527,582 7,339,967
1 – 2 years    -    544,600
    
    4,527,582 7,884,567
    

8.3 Allowance for doubtf ul debts

The Group makes allowance for doubtf ul debts based on assessment of recoverability. Whilst management’s 
judgement is guided by past experience, judgement is required about the future recovery of debts.
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8. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

8.4 Amount due from / to contract customers 
   
 Group
    2010 2009 
    RM RM 
  

Aggregate costs incurred to date    55,672,747 86,004,633
Add: Att ributable profi ts (net of 
 foreseeable losses)    5,842,997 13,334,493
    
    61,515,744 99,339,126 
Less: Progress billings    (47,078,607) (97,968,027)
    
    14,437,137 1,371,099
Amount due to contract customers (Note 14)   1,714,771 7,962,397
    
Amount due from contract customers   16,151,908 9,333,496

     

8.5 Other receivables

Included in the other receivables of the Group is advance payments made to suppliers for purchases 
amounti ng to RM809,741 (2009 - RM414,142).

8.6 Amount due from subsidiaries

 The amount due from subsidiaries is unsecured, interest-free and has no fi xed terms of repayment.

9. INVENTORIES

 Group
    2010 2009 
    RM RM 
At cost:  
 Raw materials and consumables    1,497,116 5,225,899
    

10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

                           Group                      Company
  2010 2009 2010 2009
 Note RM RM RM RM

 Cash and bank balances  7,980,973 5,565,828 208,185 117,942
 Short term funds 10.1 397,070 339,289 397,070 339,289
 Deposits placed with  
  licensed banks 10.2 34,877,794 52,630,787 -    -    
    
    43,255,837 58,535,904 605,255 457,231
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10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED) 

10.1 Short term funds

Included in short term funds of the Group and of the Company is a placement with fi xed income trusts of 
which is redeemable upon seven (7) days noti ce. 

10.2 Deposits placed with licensed banks

In 2009, a deposit of the Group amounti ng to RM143,262 was pledged to a licensed bank as a security for 
credit faciliti es granted to the Group.

11. SHARE CAPITAL  
 
               Group and Company
     Number  Number
    Amount of shares Amount of shares
    2010 2010 2009 2009
    RM     RM    
 Authorised:
  Ordinary shares of 
  RM1.00 each  175,000,000 175,000,000 175,000,000 175,000,000
  5.5% Irredeemable 
  Converti ble Preference  
  Shares (ICPS)
  2004 / 2009 of
  RM1.00 each   25,000,000 25,000,000 25,000,000 25,000,000
   
  Total  200,000,000 200,000,000 200,000,000 200,000,000
   
 Issued and paid up:
  Ordinary shares of 
  RM1.00 each  112,875,002 112,875,002 88,146,507 88,146,507
  Conversion of ICPS 
  into ordinary shares  -    -    24,728,495 24,728,495
   
  Total ordinary shares  112,875,002 112,875,002 112,875,002 112,875,002
  
  5.5% Irredeemable 
  Converti ble Preference
   Shares (ICPS) 
  2004 / 2009 
  of RM1.00 each:
  Gross balance   -    -    24,728,495 24,728,495
  Conversion of ICPS
  into ordinary shares  -    -    (24,728,495) (24,728,495)
   
    -    -    -    -   
  
  Total  112,875,002 112,875,002 112,875,002 112,875,002
   
 
 The holders of ordinary shares are enti tled to receive dividends as declared from ti me to ti me and are enti tled 

to one vote per share at meeti ngs of the Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual 
assets. In respect of the Company’s treasury shares that are held by the Group, all rights are suspended unti l 
those shares are reissued.
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notes to the financial statements (cont’d)

11. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

The salient features of the Irredeemable Converti ble Preference Shares (ICPS) were as follows:

(i) The ICPS was issued for a period of fi ve (5) years from the date of issuance and maturing upon the expiry 
of the fi ve (5) years period being 30 March 2009;

(ii) The ICPS will be converti ble into new ordinary shares of RM1.00 each in the Company at any ti me 
throughout the remaining tenure during which the ICPS are converti ble at the rate of one (1) ICPS for one 
(1) Company’s ordinary share;

(iii) All unconverted ICPS will be mandatorily converted into new ordinary shares of RM1.00 each of the 
Company at the maturity date;

(iv) The ICPS holders enti tled to receive a fi xed cumulati ve dividend of 5.5% per annum which is payable annually 
in arrears on 31 December each year during the fi ve (5) years period the ICPS remains outstanding; 

(v) The ICPS holders are enti tled to a return of capital in preference to holders of ordinary shares of the 
Company should the Company be wound up but shall not be enti tled to any further parti cipati on in profi t 
or assets;

(vi) The new ordinary shares of RM1.00 each of the Company to be issued upon any conversion of ICPS shall 
rank pari passu in all respects with the existi ng ordinary shares of RM1.00 each of the Company, including 
voti ng rights and the right to all dividends and other distributi ons that may be declared by the Company;

(vii) The ICPS holders shall have the same rights as existi ng ordinary shareholders of the Company as regards to 
receiving noti ces, reports, audited fi nancial statements and att ending general meeti ngs of the Company; 
and

(viii) The ICPS holders do not carry any rights to vote at any general meeti ngs of the Company except in matt ers 
that would aff ect the rights of the ICPS holders such as when the dividend or part of the dividend on the 
ICPS is in arrears for more than six (6) months, on a proposal to reduce the Company’s share capital, on a 
proposal for the disposal of the whole of the Company’s property, business and undertaking, on a proposal 
that aff ects the rights and privileges to the ICPS, on a proposal to wind-up the Company and during the 
winding-up of the Company.

At 30 March 2009, the ICPS had matured and all outstanding ICPS were converted into the Company’s ordinary 
shares based on the conversion rate as menti oned above.

12. RESERVES

12.1 Treasury shares

The shareholders of the Company by a special resoluti on passed in the Annual General Meeti ng on 25 
February 2010, approved the Company’s plan to purchase its own shares. The Directors of the Company 
are committ ed to enhancing the value of the Company to its shareholders and believe that the purchase 
plan can be applied in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. 

There were no treasury shares purchased nor sold during the fi nancial year. The number of treasury 
shares held at year end was 2,030,200 (2009: 2,030,200) units.

12.2 Revaluati on reserve (Non-distributable) 

The revaluati on reserve relates to the revaluati on of the Group’s freehold and leasehold buildings in 
2007. 



52 ANNUAL REPORT 2010       APB RESOURCES BERHAD 564838-V

notes to the financial statements (cont’d)

12. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

12.3 Retained earnings (Distributable) 

The Finance Act, 2007 introduced a single ti er income tax system with eff ect from year of assessment 2008. 
Under this system, tax on a company’s profi t is a fi nal tax and dividends distributed to shareholders will 
be exempted from tax. Companies with credit balance in Secti on 108 account will be given an irrevocable 
opti on to elect for the single ti er tax system.

On 26 January 2010, the Company has elected for the single ti er tax system and therefore, dividends 
distributed to shareholders will be exempted from tax.

13. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 

Recognised deferred tax (assets) and liabiliti es

Deferred tax (assets) and liabiliti es are att ributable to the followings: 

   Assets Liabiliti es Net
 Group 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
    RM RM RM RM RM RM

Property,   
 plant and 
 equipment -    -     4,564,812 4,677,585 4,564,812 4,677,585
Provisions (2,924,367) (3,825,453) -     -    (2,924,367) (3,825,453)
Other 
 temporary 
 diff erences -    (2,713) 217,322 -    217,322 (2,713) 
  
  (2,924,367) (3,828,166) 4,782,134 4,677,585 1,857,767 849,419

Movement in temporary diff erences during the year 
 
    Property,  Other
    plant and  temporary
    equipment Provisions diff erences Total
    RM RM RM RM

At 1 October 2008   3,345,382    (3,231,601)   49,922 163,703
Recognised in 
 income statements (Note 20)  1,332,203    (593,852) (52,635) 685,716
   
At 30 September 2009/
 1 October 2009   4,677,585    (3,825,453) (2,713) 849,419
Recognised in 
   income statements (Note 20)  (112,773) 901,086 220,035 1,008,348 
          
At 30 September 2010   4,564,812  (2,924,367) 217,322 1,857,767
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notes to the financial statements (cont’d)

13. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

                           Group
    2010 2009
    RM RM

 
 Deducti ble temporary diff erence    -    280,067
 Tax loss carry-forward     581,247 -   
  
      581,247 280,067 

 The deducti ble temporary diff erence does not expire under current tax legislati on. Deferred tax assets have 
not been recognised in respect of these items because it is not probable that future taxable profi t will be 
available against which the Group can uti lise the benefi ts there from.

14. PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

                           Group                      Company
  2010 2009 2010 2009
 Note RM RM RM RM 

Trade 
Trade payables  14.1, 14.2 7,997,271 10,896,869 -     -    
Amount due to contract 
 customers  8.4 1,714,771 7,962,397 -     -     
   
    9,712,042 18,859,266 -     -     
  
Non-trade
Amount due to a 
 subsidiary  14.3 -     -     6,371,814   6,021,814
Other payables  14.4 118,996 380,051 -     -    
Accrued expenses   3,978,589 11,079,109 244,935 252,134
  
    4,097,585 11,459,160 6,616,749 6,273,948
   
    13,809,627 30,318,426 6,616,749 6,273,948
   

14.1 Analysis of foreign currency exposure for signifi cant trade payables 
  

Signifi cant trade payables that are not in the functi onal currency of the Group’s enti ti es are as follows:  

      Group
      2010 2009 
      RM RM 
  

Functi onal currency Foreign currency    
RM USD    461,589 36,128
RM EURO    -    28,542
RM SGD    30,092 17,167
RM GBP    18,748 -    
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notes to the financial statements (cont’d)

14. PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (CONTINUED)

14.2 Trade payables
  

Included in trade payables of the Group is an amount of RM148,149 (2009 - RM406,172) due to companies 
in which certain Directors of the Company have interests.

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

14.3 Amount due to a subsidiary

The amount due to a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

14.4 Other payables

Included in the other payables of the Group is an amount of RM28,895 (2009 - RM22,132) due to 
companies in which certain Directors of the Company have fi nancial interests.

15. PROVISION FOR LIQUIDATED AND ASCERTAINED DAMAGES   

       Group
       RM

At 1 October 2009      11,347,117
 Provision made during the year     1,435,506
Provision used during the year      (383,327)
 Provision reversed during the year      (5,064,845)
  
At 30 September 2010      7,334,451
  

As at 30 September 2010, the Group has provision of RM7,334,451 which was provided for the Group’s potenti al 
obligati ons arising from the delay in completi on and delivery of projects. The amount to be provided was 
determined based on the contracted terms as set out in the lett ers of award, contracts or purchase orders. The 
fi nal sett lement sum together with the ti ming of sett lement may vary depending on the outcome of negoti ati ons 
between the Group and their customers. 

16. REVENUE
                           Group                      Company

   2010 2009 2010 2009
   RM RM RM RM

Revenue - contract revenue  128,698,928 162,634,691 -      -     
 - dividend income  -     -     10,496,760 5,818,856
 
   128,698,928 162,634,691 10,496,760 5,818,856 
 
Contract costs recognised as 
 cost of goods sold  (108,335,859) (128,549,976) -     -     

Gross profi t  20,363,069 34,084,715 10,496,760 5,818,856 
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notes to the financial statements (cont’d)

17. OPERATING PROFIT

                           Group                      Company
   2010 2009 2010 2009
   RM RM RM RM

Operati ng profi t is arrived at 
 aft er crediti ng:
 Dividend income  -    -    10,496,760 5,818,856
 Gain on foreign exchange  
  - realised  -    4,592,901 -   -   
  - unrealised  118,190 418,170 -   -   
 Interest income   876,200 1,227,289 14,547 31,989
 Net gain on disposal of plant   
 and equipment  65,329 29 -   -  
 Rental income  -    15,950 -   -  
 Reversal of accrual for
 recti fi cati on works  -    4,192,557 -   -  
 Reversal of allowance for 
 doubtf ul debts  46,328 87,423  -   -  
 Reversal of provision for
 liquidated and ascertained
 damages  5,064,845 3,973,250 -   -  
 Reversal of unrealised loss
 on forward contracts  570,823 -    -   -  

and aft er charging:

 Allowance for doubtf ul debts  495,588 1,543,797 -   -   
 Amorti sati on of prepaid lease
 payments  278,644 195,206 -   -   
 Auditors’ remunerati on
 - Statutory audit  
 - KPMG  81,000 81,000 20,000 20,000
 - Other auditor  1,000 1,000 -   -   
 - Other services  
 - KPMG  5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
 Depreciati on of property,
 plant and equipment  5,022,030 4,543,486 -   -   
 Hire of machineries  126,194 105,365 -   -   
 Loss on foreign exchange 
   - realised  3,191,771 489,820 -   -   
   - unrealised  -    222,846 -   -   
 Personnel expenses (excluding
 key management personnel):  
  - contributi on to Employees’ 
 Provident Fund  974,594 1,176,213 35,796 33,948
 - wages, salaries and others  8,635,429 10,353,408 148,250 135,900 
 Plant and equipment writt en off   1 2 -   -   
 Provision for liquidated and    
 ascertained damages  1,435,506 5,722,562 -   -   
 Rental of factory  613,000 898,822 -   -    
 Rental of hostel   103,668 102,195 -   -   
 Rental of motor vehicles  50,182 49,266 -   -   
 Rental of premises  20,960 24,360 -   -    
 Reversal of unrealised gain    
 on foreign exchange  10,905 -    -   -   
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notes to the financial statements (cont’d)

18. FINANCE COSTS
  

                           Group                      Company
   2010 2009 2010 2009
   RM RM RM RM
  
Dividend on ICPS (Note 22)  -    22,996 -    22,996
Other bank charges  208,253 280,143 -    -   
   
   208,253 303,139 -    22,996 
 

19. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION

The key management personnel compensati ons are as follows: 

                           Group                      Company
   2010 2009 2010 2009
   RM RM RM RM
Directors
 - Fees  154,000 104,000 150,000 100,000
 - Remunerati on  1,174,425 1,200,380 231,250 273,400
   
   1,328,425 1,304,380 381,250 373,400

 
Apart from Directors, there are no other key management personnel having authority and responsibility for 
planning, directi ng and controlling the acti viti es of the Group’s enti ti es either directly or indirectly. 

20. TAX EXPENSE 
  

                           Group                      Company
   2010 2009 2010 2009
   RM RM RM RM

Current tax expense
Current year  534,221 2,392,098 -    -   
(Over)/Under-provision in 
 prior years  (115,215) 1,407,917 -    12,257
   
   419,006 3,800,015 -    12,257
  
Deferred tax expense
Originati on and reversal of 
 temporary diff erences  1,413,870 1,467,234 -        -    
Over-provision in prior years  (405,522) (781,518) -    -    
      
   1,008,348 685,716 -         -    

Tax expense  1,427,354 4,485,731 -    12,257
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notes to the financial statements (cont’d)

20. TAX EXPENSE  (CONTINUED)
  

                           Group                      Company
   2010 2009 2010 2009
   RM RM RM RM

Reconciliati on of tax expense

Profi t for the year  4,881,982 23,423,266 9,712,356 4,662,690
Total tax expense  1,427,354 4,485,731 -    12,257
  
Profi t excluding tax   6,309,336 27,908,997 9,712,356 4,674,947

Income tax using Malaysian tax
 rate at 25%   1,577,334 6,977,249 2,428,089 1,168,737
Non-deducti ble expenses  510,491 544,103 199,738 293,974
Non-taxable income  -    -    (2,627,827) (1,462,711)
Tax incenti ves  (215,029) (3,626,429) -    -   
Uti lisati on of deferred tax assets 
 previously not recognised  -    (35,591) -    -   
Eff ect of unrecognised deferred
 tax assets  75,295 -   -    -   
   
  1,948,091 3,859,332 -    -   
(Over)/Under-provision in 
 prior years  (520,737) 626,399 -    12,257 

Tax expense  1,427,354 4,485,731 -    12,257 

21. EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE

Basic earnings per ordinary share

 The calculati on of basic earnings per ordinary share at 30 September 2010 was based on the profi t att ributable 
to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding calculated as 
follows:
    
     2010 2009
Group     RM RM
 
 Profi t for the year att ributable to ordinary shareholders   4,881,982 23,423,266
Less: Dividend on ICPS - equity component    -    (569,321)
   
Profi t att ributable to ordinary shareholders    4,881,982 22,853,945

Weighted average number of ordinary shares:
     Group
     2010 2009 

Issued ordinary shares at 1 October    112,875,002 88,146,507
Less: Eff ect of treasury shares held    (2,030,200) (2,030,200) 
 Less: Eff ect of conversion of ICPS into ordinary shares    -    12,330,373
   
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 
   at 30 September    110,844,802 98,446,680
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21. EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE (CONTINUED)

Basic earnings per ordinary share (cont’d)

    Group
     2010 2009
     Sen Sen
    
Basic earnings per ordinary share    4.40 23.21
   

 There were no diluted earnings per ordinary share for the Group as at 30 September 2010.

22. DIVIDENDS

Dividends recognised by the Company are: 

  Sen Total
  per share amount Date of
2010 (net of tax) RM payment
 
Interim single-ti er 2010 ordinary 3.5 3,879,577 22 June 2010
Final single-ti er 2009 ordinary 3.0 3,325,344 10 March 2010
    
Total amount  7,204,921
    
2009

Ordinary dividend:
Interim 2009 ordinary 2.63 2,909,676 26 June 2009
Final 2008 ordinary 2.25 1,937,610 11 March 2009
    
Total amount  4,847,286
    
Preference dividend:
Current year  592,317
Less: Amount relati ng to liability component  (22,996)
    
Total amount  569,321
   

The net dividend per ordinary share as disclosed in the Income Statements takes into account the total fi nal 
dividend paid in respect of the year ended 30 September 2009 and interim dividend paid for the year.

The fi nal single-ti er exempt ordinary dividend recommended by the Directors to be approved by the shareholders 
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeti ng in respect of the year ended 30 September 2010 is 3.0 sen per 
ordinary share totalling RM3,325,344.
 
The proposed fi nal dividend for this fi nancial year will be accounted for as an appropriati on of retained earnings 
upon shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeti ng.

23. SEGMENTAL REPORTING

Segmental informati on is presented in respect of the Group’s business segments. The primary format, business 
segments, is based on the Group’s management and internal reporti ng structure. 

Segment results, assets and liabiliti es include items directly att ributable to a segment as well as those that 
can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly interest-earning assets, corporate 
assets, expenses and tax assets and liabiliti es.
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23. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Segment capital expenditure is the total costs incurred during the year to acquire segment assets that are 
expected to be used for more than one year.

Inter-segment pricing is determined based on negoti ated terms.

Business segments

The Group comprises the following main business segments:

Fabricati on Fabricati on of specially designed and manufacturing of engineering equipment.

Non-destructi ve testi ng Provision of non-destructi ve testi ng services and other related services.

Geographical segments

All acti viti es of the Group are located within Malaysia. Accordingly, segmental informati on based on geographical 
segments is not presented.

   Non-  
Business Segments   destructi ve   
  Fabricati on testi ng Eliminati on Consolidated
2010  RM RM RM RM 
 

Total external revenue  125,755,730 2,943,198 -    128,698,928
Inter-segment revenue  3,395,743 2,448,731 (5,844,474) -   
  
Total segment revenue  129,151,473 5,391,929 (5,844,474) 128,698,928
  
Segment result  5,706,543 977,293 -    6,683,836
                       
Unallocated expenses     (1,042,447)
Interest income     876,200
    
Operati ng profi t     6,517,589
Finance costs     (208,253)
    
Profi t before tax     6,309,336
Tax expense      (1,427,354)
     
Profi t for the year     4,881,982
     
2009

Total external revenue  159,188,978 3,445,713 -     162,634,691
Inter-segment revenue  -    2,606,506 (2,606,506) -    
 
Total segment revenue  159,188,978 6,052,219 (2,606,506) 162,634,691
  
Segment result  27,145,301 994,505 -     28,139,806
                       
Unallocated expenses     (1,154,959)
Interest income     1,227,289

Operati ng profi t     28,212,136
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23. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (CONTINUED)

   Non-  
Business Segments (cont’d)   destructi ve   
  Fabricati on testi ng Eliminati on Consolidated
2009 (cont’d)  RM RM RM RM 

Operati ng profi t     28,212,136
Finance costs     (303,139)
     
Profi t before tax     27,908,997
Tax expense      (4,485,731)
     
Profi t for the year     23,423,266

2010   

Segment assets  156,796,036 6,112,642 (781,969) 162,126,709
Unallocated assets     17,273,460
     
Total assets     179,400,169
     
Segment liabiliti es  21,052,300 1,421,169 (1,581,969) 20,891,500
Unallocated liabiliti es     2,200,831
     
Total liabiliti es     23,092,331
     
Amorti sati on of prepaid 
 lease payments  278,644 -    -    278,644
Capital expenditure       2,394,389 397,113 -    2,791,502
Depreciati on of property, 
 plant and equipment  4,760,981 261,049 -    5,022,030
Non-cash expenses other
 than depreciati on,
 amorti sati on and 
 impairment loss       46,328 -    -    46,328
  
2009

Segment assets  179,152,156 5,688,944 (888,682) 183,952,418
Unallocated assets     17,603,964
     
Total assets     201,556,382
     
Segment liabiliti es  41,270,178 1,022,792 (888,682)     41,404,288
Unallocated liabiliti es     1,521,317
     
Total liabiliti es     42,925,605
     
Amorti sati on of prepaid 
 lease payments  195,206 -    -    195,206
Capital expenditure       32,324,553   103,228 -    32,427,781
Depreciati on of property, 
 plant and equipment  4,217,149 326,337 -    4,543,486
Non-cash expenses other
 than depreciati on,
 amorti sati on and 
 impairment loss       1,543,797 -    -    1,543,797
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management objecti ves and policies 

The Group’s acti viti es are exposed to various types of fi nancial risks, including credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign 
currency risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s overall fi nancial risk management objecti ve is to att ain the 
opti mum returns for its shareholders. The management monitors these risks by reviewing all signifi cant 
transacti ons.

Credit risk

Management carries out a conti nuous review over the Group’s exposure to credit risk.

At balance sheet date, concentrati on of credit risk arose from trade receivables with net carrying amounts of 
RM18,670,534 (2009 – RM18,673,968) due from certain major customers of the Group. The maximum exposure 
to credit risk of the Group is represented by the carrying amount of each fi nancial asset in the balance sheet.

Liquidity risk

The Group and the Company acti vely manage its operati ng cash fl ows and the availability funding so as to 
ensure that all funding needs are met.  As part of the overall prudent liquidity management, the Group and the 
Company maintain suffi  cient levels of cash to meet their working capital requirements. In additi on, the Group 
and the Company strive to maintain available banking faciliti es at a reasonable level for the operati on. Where 
necessary, the Group and the Company raise committ ed funding from fi nancial insti tuti ons and prudently 
balances the portf olio with some short term funding so as to achieve overall cost eff ecti veness.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises from sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency other than Ringgit 
Malaysia. The currencies giving rise to this risk are US Dollar, Singapore Dollar, Euro Dollar, Japanese Yen and 
Pound Sterling. The Group miti gates its foreign currency risk on its purchases through uti lisati on of trade 
faciliti es such as bankers’ acceptances, trust receipts and lett ers of credit, thereby limiti ng the foreign currency 
exposure during the tenure of the credit period given.

During the year under review, certain US Dollar denominated projects have been fully hedged using forward 
exchange contracts which mirror the esti mated cash fl ow of the projects. Changes in the fair value of forward 
exchange contracts that economically hedge monetary assets and liabiliti es in foreign currencies are recognised 
in the income statement. 

The Directors monitor the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk on a conti nuous basis.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s primary interest rate risk arises from interest bearing deposits placed with licensed banks. 

Eff ecti ve interest rates and repricing analysis

In respect of interest-earning fi nancial assets, the following table indicates their eff ecti ve interest rates at the 
balance sheet date and the periods in which they mature, or if earlier, reprice.

   Eff ecti ve   
   interest rates  Within 
   per annum Total 1 year 
   % RM RM
Group

2010

Financial assets
Deposits placed with licensed banks   1.79 34,877,794 34,877,794
Short term funds   2.85 397,070 397,070
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Eff ecti ve interest rates and repricing analysis (cont’d)

   Eff ecti ve   
   interest rates  Within 
   per annum Total 1 year 
   % RM RM
Group

2009

Financial assets
Deposits placed with licensed banks   1.83 52,630,787 52,630,787
Short term funds   2.59 339,289 339,289

Company

2010

Financial assets
Short term funds   2.85 397,070 397,070
   
2009

Financial assets
Short term funds   2.59 339,289 339,289

Fair values

Recognised fi nancial instruments

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, deposits, and payables and accruals approximate 
their fair values due to the relati vely short term nature of these fi nancial instruments.

The Company provides fi nancial guarantees to banks for credit faciliti es extended to certain subsidiaries and to 
suppliers of its subsidiaries. The fair values of such fi nancial guarantees are not expected to be material as the 
probability of the subsidiaries defaulti ng on the credit line is remote.

The fair values of other fi nancial instruments, together with their carrying amounts as shown in the balance 
sheet, are as follows:
   
  2010 2009
  Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Group                   Note amount value amount value
  RM RM RM RM
 
Other investment            24.1 35,000 60,000 35,000 48,000
   

Forward exchange contracts:
Liabiliti es 24.2 -    -    513,819  513,819 
   

24.1  The basis used in determining the fair value of other investment which represents golf club memberships 
was determined based on the current price of the membership.

24.2 The nominal value of derivati ves is as follows:

    2010 2009
    RM RM
Forward exchange contracts

Liability -in USD    -    10,283,000
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Esti mati on of fair value

 Forward exchange contracts were marked-to-market using quoted market prices.

25. LEASE COMMITMENTS

Leases as lessee 

Total future minimum lease payments under operati ng lease rentals are payable as follows:
    Group
    2010 2009
    RM RM

Less than one year     722,400 179,000
Between one and fi ve years    16,800 -   
  
    739,200 179,000
  

The Group leases factories and hostels under operati ng leases. The leases typically run for a period of 2 to 3 
years, with an opti on to renew the lease aft er that date. 

26. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

    Group
    2010 2009
    RM RM

Plant and equipment
 Contracted but not provided for    -    820,000 
   

27. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (UNSECURED)
                  Company
    2010 2009 
    RM RM
Corporate guarantees granted to suppliers
 of its subsidiaries    8,100,000 8,100,000 
 Corporate guarantees granted to fi nancial insti tuti ons 
 for bank faciliti es granted to its subsidiaries   90,700,000 90,700,000
    

28. RELATED PARTIES 

For the purposes of these fi nancial statements, parti es are considered to be related to the Group or the Company 
if the Group or the Company has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise signifi cant 
infl uence over the party in making fi nancial and operati ng decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group or the 
Company and the party are subject to common control or common signifi cant infl uence. Related parti es may 
be individuals or other enti ti es. 

Key management personnel are defi ned as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, 
directi ng and controlling the acti viti es of the Group either directly or indirectly. The key management personnel 
includes all the Directors of the Group. Key management personnel compensati on is disclosed in Note 19.
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notes to the financial statements (cont’d)

29. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ON THE BREAKDOWN OF REALISED AND UNREALISED PROFITS OR LOSSES

 On 25 March 2010, Bursa Malaysia Securiti es Berhad (“Bursa Malaysia”) issued a directi ve to all listed issuers 
pursuant to Paragraphs 2.06 and 2.23 of Bursa Malaysia Main Market Listi ng Requirements. The directi ve 
requires all listed issuers to disclose the breakdown of the unappropriated profi ts or accumulated losses as at 
the end of the reporti ng period, into realised and unrealised profi ts or losses.

 On 20 December 2010, Bursa Malaysia further issued another directi ve on the disclosure and the prescribed 
format of presentati on.
 
 The breakdown of the retained earnings of the Group and of the Company as at 30 September 2010, into 
realised and unrealised profi ts, pursuant to the directi ve, is as follows:

                 2010
    Group Company 
    RM RM
 
Total retained earnings of the Company and 
 its subsidiaries:
 - realised profi ts    92,953,921 4,989,608
 - unrealised losses    (3,226,595) -   
  
    89,727,326 4,989,608
Less: consolidati on adjustments    (43,018,907) -   
  
Total retained earnings (distributable)    46,708,419 4,989,608
   
The determinati on of realised and unrealised profi ts is based on the Guidance of Special Matt er No.1, 
Determinati on of Realised and Unrealised Profi ts or Losses in the Context of Disclosures Pursuant to Bursa 
Malaysia Securiti es Berhad Listi ng Requirements, issued by Malaysian Insti tute of Accountants on 20 December 
2010.
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In the opinion of the Directors, the fi nancial statements set out on pages 28 to 64 are drawn up in accordance with 
Financial Reporti ng Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the 
fi nancial positi on of the Group and of the Company at 30 September 2010 and of their fi nancial performance and 
cash fl ows for the fi nancial year then ended.

In the opinion of the Directors, the informati on set out in Note 29 on page 65 has been properly compiled in 
accordance with the Guidance of Special Matt er No.1, Determinati on of Realised and Unrealised Profi ts or Losses 
in the Context of Disclosures Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securiti es Berhad Listi ng Requirements, issued by the 
Malaysian Insti tute of Accountants and presented based on the format prescribed by Bursa Malaysia Securiti es 
Berhad.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resoluti on of the Directors:

………………………………………………………..
Yap Kow @ Yap Kim Fah

………………………………………………………..
Tan Teng Khuan

Kuala Lumpur,

Date: 27 January 2011

I, Cheong Wai Pong, the offi  cer primarily responsible for the fi nancial management of APB Resources Berhad, do 
solemnly and sincerely declare that the fi nancial statements set out on pages 28 to 65 are, to the best of my 
knowledge and belief, correct and I make this solemn declarati on conscienti ously believing the same to be true, and 
by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarati ons Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed in Kuala Lumpur on 27 January 2011.

 
…………………………
Cheong Wai Pong

Before me:

statement by directors 
pursuant to Section 169(15) of the Companies Act, 1965

statutory declaration 
pursuant to Section 169(16) of the Companies Act, 1965
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Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the fi nancial statements of APB Resources Berhad, which comprise the balance sheets as at 30 
September 2010 of the Group and of the Company, and the income statements, statements of changes in equity 
and cash fl ow statements of the Group and of the Company for the fi nancial year then ended, and a summary of 
signifi cant accounti ng policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 28 to 64.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparati on and fair presentati on of these fi nancial statements 
in accordance with Financial Reporti ng Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. This responsibility 
includes: designing, implementi ng and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparati on and fair presentati on 
of fi nancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecti ng and applying 
appropriate accounti ng policies; and making accounti ng esti mates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fi nancial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with approved standards on auditi ng in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the fi nancial statements are 
free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the fi nancial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of risks of material 
misstatement of the fi nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we 
consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparati on and fair presentati on of the fi nancial statements in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the eff ecti veness of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluati ng the appropriateness 
of accounti ng policies used and the reasonableness of accounti ng esti mates made by the Directors, as well as 
evaluati ng the overall presentati on of the fi nancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi  cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the fi nancial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Financial Reporti ng 
Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the fi nancial positi on of 
the Group and of the Company as of 30 September 2010 and of their fi nancial performance and cash fl ows for the 
fi nancial year then ended.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following:

a) In our opinion, the accounti ng and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the 
Company and its subsidiaries of which we have acted as auditors have been properly kept in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act.

b) We have considered the accounts and the auditors’ reports of all the subsidiaries of which we have not acted 
as auditors, which are indicated in Note 5 to the fi nancial statements. 

c) We are sati sfi ed that the accounts of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the Company’s fi nancial 
statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparati on of the fi nancial 
statements of the Group and we have received sati sfactory informati on and explanati ons required by us for 
those purposes.

d) The audit reports on the accounts of the subsidiaries did not contain any qualifi cati on or any adverse comment 
made under Secti on 174(3) of the Act.

independent auditors» 
report to the members of APB Resources Berhad 
(Company No. 564838-V) (Incorporated in Malaysia)
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Other Reporti ng Responsibiliti es

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the fi nancial statements taken as a whole. The 
informati on set out in Note 29 to the fi nancial statements has been compiled by the Company as required by the 
Bursa Malaysia Securiti es Berhad Listi ng Requirements. We have extended our audit procedures to report on the 
process of compilati on of such informati on. In our opinion, the informati on has been properly compiled, in all 
material respects, in accordance with the Guidance of Special Matt er No.1, Determinati on of Realised and Unrealised 
Profi ts or Losses in the Context of Disclosures Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securiti es Berhad Listi ng Requirements, 
issued by the Malaysian Insti tute of Accountants and presented based on the format prescribed by Bursa Malaysia 
Securiti es Berhad.

Other Matt ers

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Secti on 174 of the 
Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person 
for the content of this report.

KPMG Peter Ho Kok Wai
Firm Number: AF 0758 Approval Number: 1745/12/11(J)
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant
 
Petaling Jaya, 

Date: 27 January 2011

independent auditors» 
report to the members of APB Resources Berhad (cont’d)
(Company No. 564838-V) (Incorporated in Malaysia)
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   Land Area /    
   Built-Up Area   
   (Date for Certi fi cate   
  Descripti on of Fitness / Carrying    
  (Approximate Age *Certi fi cate Amounts Open
  of Building) / of Completi on As At Market Date of  
Property Tenure Existi ng Use and Compliance) 30 Sept 2010 Value Valuati on  
    (RM) (RM)

Amalgamated Metal 
Corporati on (M) Sdn. Bhd.      

1. Lot No. 109-B, Jalan Gebeng 1/1,  Leasehold Three (3) Storey Offi  ce  39,250  /  179,541 9,000,000 9,500,000 30 September  
Kawasan Perindustrian Gebeng, 66 years Building, Five (5) square metres (Within Property, (For Buildings) 2007

 26080 Kuantan, Pahang expiring on Single-Storey Detached (12 June 1995) Plant and
 (HS(D) No. 17909, PT No. 7494, 26 May 2064 Factory/Workshop cum  Equipment)
 Mukim Sungai Karang,   Storage Area  3,620,455 4,700,000
 Daerah Kuantan, Pahang)  (9 years) /  (Within Prepaid (For Land)
   For Offi  ce and  Lease Payments)
   Factory Operati ons  12,620,455 14,200,000 
     (Total) (Total)
      
2. Lot No. 23-C, Jalan Gebeng 1/1, Leasehold Four (4) Single-Storey 26,110  /  37,747 6,296,454 6,600,000 30 September  

Kawasan Perindustrian Gebeng,  66 years Detached square metres (Within Property, (For Buildings) 2007 
 26080 Kuantan, Pahang expiring on Factory/Workshop cum (8 June 2003) Plant and
 (HS(D) No. 18127, PT No. 7533,  23 August Storage Area  Equipment)
 Mukim Sungai Karang, 2064 (6 years) /  2,413,636 3,200,000  
 Daerah Kuantan, Pahang)  For Factory Operati ons  (Within Prepaid (For Land) 
     Lease Payments)  
     8,710,090 9,800,000 
     (Total) (Total) 
       
3. Lot No. 540, Jalan TUDM,  Leasehold Three (3) Storey Offi  ce 8,094  /  4,597 4,178,824 4,440,000 30 September  

Kampung Baru Subang,  60 years Building, Two (2) square metres (Within Property, (For Buildings) 2007
 40150 Shah Alam, Selangor expiring on Single-Storey Detached (29 March 2004) Plant and  
 (HS(D) No. 116988, PT No. 540,  13 January Factory/Workshop cum  Equipment)  
 Mukim Pekan Subang,  2058 Storage Area  2,008,599 2,610,000 
 Daerah Petaling, Selangor)  (5 1/2 years) /  (Within Prepaid (For Land) 
   For Offi  ce and  Lease Payments)  
   Factory Operati ons  6,187,423 7,050,000 
     (Total) (Total) 
       
4. Lot No. 24, Kawasan Perindustrian Leasehold Three (3) Conti guous 71,050  /  11,280 18,385,939 18,813,465 8 January  

Gebeng, 26080 Kuantan, Pahang 66 years Open Sided Single- square metres (Within Property, (For Buildings) 2009
 (PN No. 7105, Lot No. 8922 expiring on Storey Detached (*29 February 2009) Plant and  
 (formerly known as HSD No.  26 May Factory/Workshop cum  Equipment)  
 17910, PT No. 7529),  2064 Storage Area  7,562,018 7,500,000
 Mukim Sungai Karang,   For Factory Operati ons  Lease Payments)
 Daerah Kuantan, Pahang)    25,947,957 26,313,465 
     (Total) (Total)
    
 
Prescan Sdn. Bhd.      

1. No. 24, Jalan Tabla 33/21, Shah Alam Freehold Intermediate Unit 1 1/2 2,000  /  3,000 300,800 320,000 30 September
 Technology Park, Seksyen 33, 40400  Storey Terraced Factory square feet (Within Property,  2007
 Shah Alam, Selangor (Geran No. 28189  (6 years) / 11 August 2000 Plant and  
 and Lot No. 22200 and Geran No. 28185  For Offi  ce and  Equipment)  
 and Lot No. 22196 Sub-Lot No. B-19,  Factory Operati ons    
 Mukim Klang, Daerah Klang, Selangor)      
       
       
       

list of properties
as at 30 september 2010
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analysis of shareholdings
as at 31January 2011

Authorised  Share  Capital 175,000,000 ordinary shares     
 25,000,000 Cumulati ve Irredeemable Converti ble Preferece shares 
Issued and Paid-up Share Capital 110,844,802 ordinary shares (excluding 2,030,200 shares bought-back)   
Class of Sahres Ordinary Shares of RM1.00 each     
Voti ng Rights One vote per ordinary share       

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS
  
 No. of  No. of  
Size of Shareholdings Shareholders % Shares % 
    
Less than 100 2,033 44.83 76,836 0.07 
100 -1,000 1,230 27.12 528,068 0.48 
1,001 - 10,000 866 19.10 3,939,330 3.55 
10,001 - 100,000 334 7.36 11,342,395 10.23 
100,001 - 5542239 (less than     
 5% of the issued shares) 67 1.48 32,589,021 29.40 
5542240 and above (5% of the     
 issued shares and above) 5 0.11 62,369,152 56.27 
    
Total 4,535 100.00 110,844,802 100.00 
    
Note:         
Excluding a total of 2,030,200 ordinary shares bought-back by APB and retained as treasury shares as 31.1.2011 
        

THIRTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
 

 No.  of 
Name  of  Shareholders Shares               %

1 IKRAM PINTAS SDN.BHD. 30,876,000 27.86
    
 
2 AMSEC NOMINESS (TEMPATAN) SDN.BHD. 9,500,000 8.57
 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT-AMBANK    
 AMBANK (M) BHD.FOR YAP KOW@YAP KIM FAH   
 
3 LEMBAGA TABUNG HAJI  8,850,300 7.98
   
4 LIM HONG LIANG 7,497,845 6.76
   
5 ASPIRASI JITU SDN.BHD. 5,645,007 5.09
    
6 TTS RESOURCES SDN.BHD 5,117,215 4.62
    
7 YAP KOW @ YAP KIM FAH 2,716,404 2.45

   
8 LIM HONG LIANG 2,161,500 1.95
    
9 DATO’ CHONG WENG CHOY 2,063,100 1.86
    
10 GOH SIANG KUAN 1,089,322 0.98
    
11 RHB CAPITAL NOMINEES (TEMPATAN)  1,000,000 0.90
 SDN.BHD. PLEDGED SECURITIES ACOUNT 
 FOR LEE TECK YUEN    
 
12 CHEONG BOON YU 955,157 0.86
   
13 TEH TECK TEE 942,000 0.85
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THIRTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)
 

 No.  of 
Name  of  Shareholders Shares               %

14 YEO SEO HWA 938,500 0.85
   
15 LEE BOOM IMM 933,000 0.84
    
16 GAN CHIN BOON 925,157 0.83
    
17 YAP KOW @ YAP KIM FAH 723,000 0.65
    
18 CHI HOO @ CHU CHI HOO 658,190 0.59
    
19 RARE PRESTIGE SDN.BHD 616,569 0.56
 
20 FONG PICK KIM 599,800 0.54
    
21 LIM PIN KONG 500,000 0.45
    
22 TAN HUEY SZU 465,400 0.42
    
23 WONG THAN LOY 406,500 0.37
    
24 CHWA ENG WAN 402,700 0.36 
   
25 MUHAMMAD MARZUKI BIN A SAMAD 400,000 0.36
    
26 EB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN.BHD. 363,500 0.33
 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR ON    
 BOON KAI   

27 PUAH SIEW MOOI 349,700 0.32
    
28 BHLB TRUSTEE BHD   345,300 0.31
 PACIFIC RECOVERY FUND   
  
29 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN.BHD. 338,000 0.30
 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR   
 NG FAAI @ NG YOKE PEI   
 
30 ONG BENG KHOON 310,000 0.28
    
 

analysis of shareholdings
as at 31 January 2011 (cont’d)
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DIRECTORS’ DIRECT AND INDIRECT INTERESTS IN SHARES OF APB        
(The Directors’ direct and indirect interests in shares of APB based on the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings)  
   
Ordinary Shares     
     
Directors       
    No. of Ordinary Shares Held  
Name  Direct % Indirect % Total %
       
Yap Kow @ Yap Kim Fah  12,939,404 11.67 35,993,215 32.47 48,932,619 44.15
Tan Teng Khuan  244,095 0.22 0 0.00 244,095 0.22
Gan Chin Boon  925,157 0.83 0 0.00 925,157 0.83
Lim Hong Liang  9,659,345 8.71 616,569 0.56 10,275,914 9.27
Yap Kau @ Yap Yeow Ho  33,000 0.03 5,117,215 4.63 5,150,215 4.66
Mak Fong Ching  0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00
Johari Low Bin Abdullah  0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00
Chua Eng Seng  0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00
Muhayuddin Bin Musa  1 0.00 0 0.00 1 0.00
       
Alternate Directors        
 
Yap Swee Sang  0 0.00 0 0 0 0
Yap Puhui Lin  163,200 0.15 0 0 163,200 0.15

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS BASED ON THE REGISTER OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS    
      
    No. of Ordinary Shares Held   
Name Note Direct % Indiret % Total %
       
Yap Kow @ Yap Kim Fah 1 12,939,404 11.67 35,993,215 32.47 48,932,619 44.15
Lim Hong Liang 2 9,659,345 8.71 616,569 0.56 10,275,914 9.27
Ikram Pintas Sdn. Bhd.  30,876,000 27.86 0 0.00 30,876,000 27.86
Aspirasi Jitu Sdn. Bhd.   5,645,007 5.09 0 0.00 5,645,007 5.09
Lembaga Tabung Haji  8,850,300 7.98 0 0.00 8,850,300 7.98
        
  
Notes:       
(1)   Deemed interested by virtue of his shareholdings in Ikram Pintas Sdn. Bhd. and TTS Resources Sdn. Bhd.   
(2)   Deemed interested by virtue of his shareholdings in Rare Presti ge Sdn. Bhd.     
      

analysis of shareholdings
as at 31 January 2011 (cont’d)
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Ninth Annual General Meeti ng of APB 
Resources Berhad will be held at Multi purpose Hall (Card Room), Royal 
Selangor Club, Dataran Merdeka, Jalan Raja, 50704 Kuala Lumpur on 
Wednesday, 23 March 2011 at 10.00 a.m. to transact the following businesses:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.  To table and receive the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the fi nancial year 
ended 30 September 2010 and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To declare a fi nal single ti er dividend of 3% in respect of the fi nancial year ended 30 September 
2010 as recommended by the Directors. 

3. To approve payment of Directors’ fees for the fi nancial year ended 30 September 2010.

4. To re-elect the following Directors who reti re by rotati on in accordance with Arti cle 84 of the 
Company’s Arti cles of Associati on:

 Mr. Yap Kau @ Yap Yeow Ho

 Mr. Chua Eng Seng

 Mr. Yap Kow @ Yap Kim Fah

5. To appoint auditors and to authorize the Directors to fi x their remunerati on.

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

6. Authority to Directors to Issue Shares

 To consider and, if thought fi t, to pass the following Ordinary Resoluti on:

 “THAT, subject always to the Arti cles of Associati on of the Company and the approvals of the 
relevant Regulatory Authoriti es, pursuant to Secti on 132D of the Companies Act, 1965, the 
Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to issue shares in the Company at any 
ti me unti l the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeti ng and upon such terms and conditi ons 
and for such purposes and to such person or persons as the Directors of the Company may, in 
their absolute discreti on deem fi t, PROVIDED THAT the aggregate number of shares to be issued 
does not exceed ten per centum (10%) of the issued share capital of the Company for the ti me 
being AND THAT the Directors of the Company are also empowered to obtain the approval for 
the listi ng of and quotati on for the additi onal shares so issued on the Bursa Malaysia Securiti es 
Berhad.”

7. Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for APB Resources Berhad and its subsidiary 
companies to enter into recurrent related party transacti ons of a revenue or trading nature with 
related party

 To consider and, if thought fi t, to pass the following Ordinary Resoluti on:

 “THAT the Mandate granted by the Shareholders of APB Resources Berhad on 25 February 2010 
pursuant to paragraph 10.09 of the Listi ng Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securiti es Berhad, 
authorizing APB Resources Berhad and its subsidiary companies (“the APB Group”) to enter 
into the recurrent transacti ons of a revenue or trading nature which are necessary for the APB 
Group’s day-to-day operati ons as set out in the Circular to Shareholders dated 28 February 2011 
with the related parti es menti oned therein, be and is hereby renewed subject to the following:

(i)   The transacti ons are in the ordinary course of business and are on terms not more favourable 
to the related parti es than those generally available to the public, and the transacti ons 
are undertaken on arm’’s length basis and are not to the detrimental of the minority 
shareholders;

Resoluti on 1

Resoluti on 2

Resoluti on 3

Resoluti on 4

Resoluti on 5

Resoluti on 6

Resoluti on 7

Resoluti on 8

Resoluti on 9

notice of ninth (9th) annual general meeting
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(ii) The Shareholders’ Mandate is subject to annual renewal and this Shareholders’ Mandate 
shall only conti nue to be in full force unti l:

(a) The conclusion of the next Annual General Meeti ng of the Company at which the 
Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate will lapse, unless by resoluti on passed at the Annual 
General Meeti ng the authority is renewed; or

(b) The expirati on of the period within which the next Annual General Meeti ng of the 
Company is required to be held pursuant to Secti on 143(l) of the Companies Act, 1965  
but shall not extend to such extension as may be allowed pursuant to Secti on 143(2) of 
the Companies Act, 1965; or

(c) Revoked or varied by resoluti on passed by the shareholders in a general meeti ng,

 whichever is earlier;

(iii) The Directors of the Company and/or its subsidiary companies be and are hereby authorized 
to complete and do all such acts and things (including executi ng such documents as may be 
required) as they may consider expedient or necessary to give eff ect to the Shareholders’ 
Mandate; and

(iv) The disclosure of the aggregate value of the recurrent related party transacti ons conducted 
pursuant to the Shareholders’ Mandate in the Annual Report, in which the Company must 
provide a breakdown of the aggregate value of the recurrent related party transacti ons 
made during the fi nancial year, amongst others, based on the following informati on:

(a) the type of the recurrent related party transacti ons made; and

(b) the names of the related party involved in each type of recurrent related party 
transacti ons made and their relati onship with the Company.

AND THAT, the esti mates given of the Related Party Transacti ons specifi ed in Secti on 2.4 of 
the Circular being provisional in nature, the Directors and/or any of them be and are hereby 
authorized to agree to the actual amount or amounts thereof provided always that such 
amount or amounts comply with the procedures set out in Secti on 2.5 of the Circular.”

8. Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back

 To consider and, if thought fi t, to pass the following Ordinary Resoluti on:

 “THAT subject to the Companies Act, 1965, the Company’s Memorandum and Arti cles of 
Associati on, the Listi ng Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securiti es Berhad and all other 
prevailing laws, rules, regulati ons and orders issued and/or amended from ti me to ti me by 
the relevant authoriti es, the Company be and is hereby authorized to allocate an amount not 
exceeding the unappropriated profi ts and/or share premium accounts of the Company for the 
purpose of and to purchase such amount of ordinary shares of RM1.00 each in the Company 
as may be determined by the Directors of the Company from ti me to ti me on the market of 
Bursa Malaysia Securiti es Berhad upon such terms and conditi ons as the Directors may deem 
fi t in the interest of the Company provided that the aggregate number of shares purchased 
pursuant to this resoluti on does not exceed ten per centum (10%) of the total issued and paid-
up share capital of the Company AND THAT at the discreti on of the Board, the shares of the 
Company to be purchased might be cancelled and/or retained as treasury shares and distributed 
as dividends or resold on the Bursa Malaysia Securiti es Berhad AND THAT the Board be and are 
hereby authorised and empowered to do all acts and things to give full eff ect to the Proposed 
Share Buy-Back AND FURTHER THAT such authority shall commence immediately upon passing 
of this resoluti on unti l:

(i) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeti ng of the Company at which ti me the 
authority shall lapse unless by ordinary resoluti on passed at a general meeti ng, the authority 
is renewed either unconditi onally or subject to conditi ons;

(ii) the expirati on of the period within which the next Annual General Meeti ng aft er that date 
is required by law to be held; or

Resoluti on 10

notice of ninth (9th) annual general meeting (cont’d)
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(iii) revoked or varied by ordinary resoluti on of the shareholders of the Company at a general 
meeti ng

 whichever occurs fi rst.”

9.   SPECIAL RESOLUTION 1
 ALTERATION TO CLAUSE 6 OF THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION 

To consider and, if thought fi t, to pass the following Special Resoluti on:

 “THAT the Memorandum of Associati on of the Company be altered by deleti ng Clause 6 in its 
enti rety and replacing Clause 6 as follow:

 New Clause 6:

 The capital of the Company is RM200,000,000.00 divided into 200,000,000 ordinary shares of 
RM1.00 each. The shares in the original or any increased capital may be divided into several 
classes and there may be att ached thereto respecti vely any preferenti al, deferred or other special 
rights, privileges, conditi ons or restricti ons as to dividends, capital, voti ng or otherwise.”

10. SPECIAL RESOLUTION 2
 ALTERATION TO ARTICLE 3A OF THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION 

 To consider and, if thought fi t, to pass the following Special Resoluti on:

 “THAT the Arti cles of Associati on of the Company be altered by deleti ng Arti cle 3A in its enti rety 
and replacing Arti cle 3A as follow:

 New Arti cle 3A:

 The capital of the Company is RM200,000,000.00 divided into 200,000,000 ordinary shares of 
RM1.00 each.”

11. SPECIAL RESOLUTION 3
 PROPOSED ALTERATION TO ARTICLE 149 OF THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION 

 To consider and, if thought fi t, to pass the following Special Resoluti on:

 “THAT in line with the amendments to the Main Market Listi ng Requirements of Bursa Malaysia 
Securiti es Berhad, the existi ng Arti cle 149 of the Arti cles of Associati on be deleted in its enti rety 
and be substi tuted thereof, with the following new Arti cle 149:

 New Arti cle 149:

(1) Any dividend, interest or other money payable in cash in respect of shares may be paid 
by way of telegraphic transfer or electronic transfer or remitt ance to such account as 
designated by such holder or the person enti tled to such payment (“eDividend”), cheque or 
dividend warrant or via any other mode or manner as may be prescribed by the Act, Listi ng 
Requirements of the Exchange and any other relevant authority for the ti me being in force.

(2) In the event that a Member has not provided his bank account details to Bursa Depository, 
any dividend, interest or other moneys payable in cash in respect of a share may be paid 
by cheque, banker’s cheque, dividend warrant or postal order and (in the case of a cheque, 
banker’s cheque, dividend warrant or postal order for such payment) sent:

(a) through post directed to the registered address of the enti tled person; or

(b) by post, by courier or by hand to the registered address of the person becoming enti tled 
to the share by reason of the death, bankruptcy or mental disorder of the holder or by 
operati on of law or if such address has not been supplied, to such address to which 
such cheque or warrant might have been posted as if the death, bankruptcy, mental 
disorder or operati on of law had not occurred; or

Resoluti on 11

Resoluti on 12

Resoluti on 13
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Notes: 

1 A member of the Company enti tled to att end and vote at this meeti ng is enti tled to appoint a proxy to att end and vote 
instead of him. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and/or a qualifi ed legal practi ti oner, an approved 
company auditor or a person approved by the Registrar.

2 The instrument appointi ng a proxy shall be in writi ng under the hand of the appointor or of his att orney duly authorized 
in writi ng or, if the appointor is a corporati on, either under the corporati on’s common seal or under the hand of an offi  cer 
or att orney duly authorized.

(c) by post, by courier or by hand to such address as the person enti tled may direct in 
writi ng,

 But the Company shall be enti tled to send such cheque or dividend warrant to such other 
address or by such other means stated in Arti cle 149(2)(a) to 149(2)(c) notwithstanding 
such directi on.

(3) Every such cheque, warrant, electronic payment or payment made using other methods of 
fund transfer shall be made payable to the order of the enti tled person, and such payment 
shall conclusively operate as a good discharge to the Company in respect of the money 
represented thereby. Every such payment shall be made at the risk of the person enti tled to 
the money represented thereby. The Company shall not be responsible for any inaccurate 
details supplied by the Members or any errors, delay of power or electronic failure 
encountered during or in the course of transmission of data or payment or any loss of any 
such eDividend, cheque, banker’s cheque, dividend warrant or postal order (whether in the 
bank account transfer, post, while being delivered by courier or by hand, aft er bank account 
transferring and/or delivering to the relevant address of person or otherwise). No unpaid or 
unclaimed dividend or interest shall bear interest as against the Company.

 In this arti cle, reference to enti tled person shall mean a member whose name appears in 
the Record of Depositors of the Company at the material ti me and in consequence of death 
or bankruptcy of member, persons through whom payments are to be made such as the 
representati ve of the deceased, or assignee of the bankrupt where such payment will be made 
through them.”

12. To transact any other business of which due noti ce shall have been given.

NOTICE OF DIVIDEND ENTITLEMENT AND PAYMENT

Noti ce is hereby given that, subject to the approval of Members at the Ninth Annual General Meeti ng to be held on 
23 March 2011, a fi nal single ti er dividend of 3% in respect of the fi nancial year ended 30 September 2010, will be 
paid on 18 April 2011 to Depositors whose names appear in the record of Depositors on 29 March 2011.

A Depositor shall qualify for enti tlement to the dividend only in respect of:

(a) Shares transferred into the Depositor’s securiti es account before 5.00 p.m. on 29 March 2011 in respect of 
transfers; and

(b) Shares bought on Bursa Malaysia Securiti es Berhad on a cum enti tlement basis according to the Rules of the 
Exchange.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

CHEOK KIM CHEE (MACS 00139)
Company Secretary
Kuala Lumpur
28 February 2011

Resoluti on 14
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3 The instrument appointi ng a proxy must be deposited at the Registered Offi  ce, D12, Tingkat 1, Plaza Pekeliling, No. 2, 
Jalan Tun Razak, 50400 Kuala Lumpur not less than 48 hours before the ti me appointed for holding the meeti ng or any 
adjournment thereof.

4 Where a member appoints two proxies, he shall specify the proporti on of his shareholding to be represented by each 
proxy. Where a member of the Company is an authorized nominee as defi ned under the Securiti es Industry (Central 
Depositories) Act 1991, it may appoint at least one proxy in respect of each securiti es account it holds with ordinary shares 
of the Company standing to the credit of the said securiti es account.

Explanatory notes on Special Business:

5 Authority to Directors to Issue Shares

 The proposed Ordinary Resoluti on 8, if passed, is to give the Directors of the Company fl exibility to issue and allot shares 
from unissued capital of the Company up to an amount not exceeding ten per centum (10%) of the Company’s total 
issued share capital for the ti me being upon such terms and conditi ons and for such purposes and to such person or 
persons as Directors of the Company in their abosolute discreti on consider to be in the interest of the Company, without 
having to convene a general meeti ng. This authority will expire at the next Annual General Meeti ng of the Company or 
at the expirati on of the period within which the next Annual General Meeti ng is required by law to be held, whichever is 
earlier.

 The proposed Resoluti on is to seek a renewal of the general mandate for the issue of new ordinary shares pursuant 
to Secti on 132D of the Companies Act, 1965 which was approved by the shareholders at the Eighth Annual General 
Meeti ng.

 At the date of this noti ce, no new shares in the Company were issued pursuant to the general Authority to Directors to 
Issue Shares authority to the Directors for issuance of shares pursuant to Secti on 132D of the Companies Act, 1965 at 
the Eighth Annual General Meeti ng held on 25 February 2010 and which will lapse at the conclusion of the Eighth Annual 
General Meeti ng. In case of any strategic opportuniti es involving equity deals, which may require the Company to allot 
and issue new shares speedily, the Company may capitalize on its advantageous positi on if the Board considers it to be in 
the best interest of the Company. Any delay arising from and the cost involved in convening a general meeti ng to approve 
such issuance of shares would be eliminated.

6 Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for APB Resources Berhad and its subsidiary companies to enter into 
recurrent related party transacti ons of a revenue or trading nature with related party.

 The proposed Ordinary Resoluti on 9, if passed, will allow the APB Group to enter into related party transacti ons provided 
that such transacti ons are in the ordinary course of business and undertaken at arm’s length, on normal commercial terms 
of APB Group which are not more favourable to the related parti es than those generally available to the public and are not 
to the detriment of the minority shareholders.

 The Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate would eliminate the need to convene separate general meeti ngs from ti me to 
ti me to seek shareholders’ approval as and when potenti al recurrent related party transacti ons arise, thereby reducing 
substanti ally administrati ve ti me and expenses in convening such meeti ngs, without compromising the corporate objecti ves 
and adversely aff ecti ng the business opportuniti es available to APB Group.

 Further informati on on the Proposed Shareholdes’ Mandate is set out in the Circular to Shareholders dated 28 February 
2011 which is despatched together with the Annual Report of the Company for the fi nancial year ended 30 September 
2010.

7 Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back

 The proposed Ordinary Resoluti on 10, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company to allocate an amount not 
exceeding the unappropriated profi ts and/or share premium accounts of the Company for the purposed of and to purchase 
such amount of ordinary shres of RM1.00 each in the Company from ti me to ti me on the market of the Bursa Malaysia 
Securiti es Berhad upon such terms and conditi ons as the Directors may deem fi t in the interest of the Company provided 
that the aggregate number of shares purchased pursuant to this resoluti on does not exceed ten per centum (10%) of the 
total issued and paid up share capital of the Company.

 This authority shall commence immediately upon passing of this resoluti on unti l:
(i) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeti ng of the Company at which ti me the authority shall lapse unless 

by ordinary resoluti on passed at general meeti ng the authority is renewed either unconditi onally or subject to 
conditi ons; or

(ii) the expirati on of the period within which the next general meeti ng aft er that date is required by law to be held; or
(iii) revoked or varied by ordinary resoluti on of the shareholders of the Company at a general meeti ng,
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 whichever occurs fi rst.

 Further informati on on the Proposed Share Buy-Back is set out in the Circular to Shareholders dated 28 February 2011 
which is despatched together with the Annual Report of the Company for the fi nancial year ended 30 September 
2010.

8 Special Resoluti ons 1 and 2
 Alterati on to Clause 6 of the Memorandum of Associati on and Arti cle 3A of the Arti cles of Associati on

 The Company had on 31 March 2004 issued 25,000,000 5.5% Irredeemable Converti ble Preference Shares (“ICPS”). 
To facilitate the issue of the said ICPS, the Company had on 25 March 2004 increased its Authorized Share Capital to 
RM200,000,000.00 divided into 175,000,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each and 25,000,000 ICPS of RM1.00 each.

The said ICPS had a term of fi ve (5) years from the date of issue and matured upon the expiry of the fi ve (5) years period. 
Upon maturity, the said ICPS had been mandatory converted into fully paid ordinary shares. 

The said ICPS matured on 30 March 2009 and had been converted into ordinary shares.

As the said ICPS had been converted into ordinary shares, the ICPS in the capital clause of the Memorandum of Associati on 
and the rights, privileges and conditi ons of ICPS in Arti cle 3A of the Arti cles of Associati on of the Company are no longer 
required. 

The Proposed Special Resoluti ons 1 and 2, if passed, will amend Clause 6 of the Memorandum of Associati on and Arti cle 3A 
of the Arti cles of Associati on accordingly.

9 Special Resoluti on 3
 Alterati on to Arti cle 149 of the Company’s Arti cles of Associati on

The proposed amendment to the existi ng Arti cle 149 of the Company’s Arti cles of Associati on is to incorporate the 
requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securiti es Berhad to provide for the payment of dividend, interest or other money payable 
in cash, directly to the Members’ account opened with the fi nancial insti tuti on in Malaysia by way of electronic payment.

The Proposed Special Resoluti on 3, if passed, the Arti cle 149 of the Company’s Arti cles of Associati on will be amended in 
line with the Main Market Listi ng Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securiti es Berhad.
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1 Directors who are standing for re-electi on are as follows:

 Pursuant to Arti cle 84 of the Company’s Arti cles of Associati on:

 (a) Mr. Yap Kau @ Yap Yeow Ho;
 (b) Mr. Chua Eng Seng; and
 (c) Mr. Yap Kow @ Yap Kim Fah

 Details of the above Directors are set out in the Directors’ Profi les appearing on pages 4 to 7 of the Annual 
Report.

2 Details of Att endances of Directors at Board Meeti ngs

 A total of fi ve (5) Board of Directors’ Meeti ngs were held during the fi nancial year ended 30 September 2010 where 
four (4) meeti ngs were held at the Board Room, No. 47 (Lot 540), Jalan TUDM, Kampung Baru Subang, Seksyen 
U6, 40150 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan and one (1) Board of Directors’ Meeti ng was held at Multi purpose 
Hall, Royal Selangor Club, Dataran Merdeka, Jalan Raja, 50704 Kuala Lumpur. Details of att endances of Directors 
at the Board Meeti ngs are set out in the Statement on Corporate Governance on pages 10 to 15 of the Annual 
Report.

3 Details of date and ti me of the Board of Directors’ Meeti ngs

 Date and ti me of the Board Meeti ngs

Wednesday, 25 November 2009, at 1.00 p.m.
Tuesday, 26 January 2010 at 11.30 a.m.;
Thursday, 25 February 2010 at 11.55 a.m.
Monday, 24 May 2010 at 4.00 p.m.
Tuesday, 24 August 2010 at 12.30 p.m.

statement accompanying 
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CORPORATE OFFICE

APB RESOURCES BERHAD

47 (Lot 540), Jalan TUDM, Kampung Baru Subang, Seksyen U6, Shah Alam, 40150 Selangor Darul Ehsan.
Tel : 603-78461389
Fax : 603-78463795
Website  :  www.apb-resources.com

FABRICATION DIVISION

AMALGAMATED METAL CORPORATION (M) SDN. BHD.

Head Offi  ce - Shah Alam

47 (Lot 540), Jalan TUDM, Kampung Baru Subang, Seksyen U6, Shah Alam, 40150 Selangor Darul Ehsan.
Tel : 603-78461389
Fax : 603-78463795
Email : amcsubg@amcsb.com.my
Website  :  www.amcsb.com.my

Branch - Kuantan

Lot 109B, Kawasan Perindustrian Gebeng, 26080 Kuantan, Pahang Darul Makmur.
Tel : 609-5858888
Fax : 609-5858892
Email : ammetal@amcsb.com.my

NON-DESTRUCTIVE TESTING DIVISION

PRESCAN SDN. BHD.

Head Offi  ce - Shah Alam

No. 24, Jalan Tabla 33/21, Shah Alam Technology Park, 40640 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan.
Tel : 603-51215951
Fax : 603-51212906
Email : prescan@pd.jaring.my

Branch - Kuantan

A31, Tingkat 1, Jalan Gebeng 2/6, 26080 Kuantan, Pahang Darul Makmur.
Tel/Fax : 609-5834457

corporate directory



proxy form

I/We ......................................................................................................... NRIC/Company No. ......….............…….........................
         (full name in block lett ers)

of .......................................................................................................……......................................….............................................
       (full address)

being a member/members of the APB RESOURCES BERHAD, hereby appoint ……………………….................................................

..................................................................................................................... NRIC/Passport No. ..................................................  
                   (full name in block lett ers) 

or failing him/her …...................................................................................NRIC/Passport No. .....................................................
     (full name in block lett ers) 

of ….................................................................................................................................................…............................................
       (full address)

or failing him/her the Chairman of the Meeti ng as *my/our proxy to vote for *me/us and on *my/our behalf at the Ninth (9th) 
Annual General Meeti ng of the Company, to be held on Wednesday, 23 March 2011 at 10.00 a.m. and at any adjournment 
thereof.

My/Our proxy is to vote as indicated below (unless otherwise instructed, the proxy may vote as he thinks fi t):
(Please indicate with an “X” in either box if you wish to direct your proxy how to vote.)

No.  For Against

Signed this                   day of                                         2011.

Signature of Member 

Notes:

1 A member of the Company enti tled to att end and vote at this meeti ng is enti tled to appoint a proxy to att end and vote instead of him. A proxy 
may but need not be a member of the Company and/or a qualifi ed legal practi ti oner, an approved company auditor or a person approved by 
the Registrar.

2 The instrument appointi ng a proxy shall be in writi ng under the hand of the appointor or of his att orney duly authorized in writi ng or, if the 
appointor is a corporati on, either under the corporati on’s common seal or under the hand of an offi  cer or att orney duly authorized.

3 The instrument appointi ng a proxy must be deposited at the registered offi  ce, D12, Tingkat 1, Plaza Pekeliling, No. 2, Jalan Tun Razak, 50400 
Kuala Lumpur not less than 48 hours before the ti me appointed for holding the meeti ng or any adjournment thereof.

4 Where a member appoints two proxies, he shall specify the proporti on of his shareholding to be represented by each proxy. Where a member 
of the Company is an authorized nominee as defi ned under the Securiti es Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991, it may appoint at least one 
proxy in respect of each securiti es account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said securiti es account.

Number of shares held

1 To table and receive the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the fi nancial year ended 
30 September 2010 and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.       (Resoluti on 1)

2 To declare a fi nal single ti er dividend of 3% in respect of the fi nancial year ended 30 September 
2010.   (Resoluti on 2)  

3 To approve payment of Directors’ fees for the fi nancial year ended 30 September 2010.                                                                       
  (Resoluti on 3)

4 To re-elect Mr. Yap Kau @ Yap Yeow Ho as Director (Resoluti on 4)

5 To re-elect Mr. Chua Eng Seng as Director                                     (Resoluti on 5)

6 To re-elect Mr. Yap Kow @ Yap Kim Fah as Director             

7 To appoint auditors and to authorize the Directors to fi x their remunerati on.  (Resoluti on 7) 

8 Authority to allot and issue shares pursuant to Secti on 132D of the Companies Act, 1965.                                                            
                                                                                    (Resoluti on 8) 

9 Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for recurrent related party transacti ons of a revenue 
or trading nature.                                                                                                (Resoluti on 9)

10 Proposed Renewal of Share Buyback                                                  (Resoluti on 10) 
 

11 Amendment to Clause 6 of the Memorandum of Associati on             (Resoluti on 11) 
 12 Amendment to Arti cle 3A of the Arti cles of Associati on                    (Resoluti on 12)  

13 Amendment to Arti cle 149 of the Arti cles of Associati on                   (Resoluti on 13) 



The Company Secretary

APB RESOURCES BERHAD 

(Company No. 564838-V)

D12,Tingkat 1
Plaza Pekeliling

No. 2 Jalan Tun Razak
50400 Kuala Lumpur

Tel No.: 03-4042 3041
Fax No.: 03-4042 3422

STAMP

FOLD HERE

FOLD HERE




